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Solitude at dusk in a peaceful field can help you feel in control of your
world. But every producer knows each day brings new forces that require
understanding and action: weather, markets, technology and more. CHS strives
to be a reliable partner in helping producers, member-owners, employees
and customers navigate the forces at home and around the world to reach
new levels of success.
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leadership letter

Joining forces for success
If fiscal 2010 delivered one clear message, it was this: When it comes to CHS
success in a dynamic global energy, grains and foods marketplace, the whole
is greater than the sum of the parts.

What do we mean by that?
Simply put, we recognize more than ever that CHS succeeds
through our ability to join forces with our owners, customers
and business partners to achieve results greater than what each
of us would attain alone. By working with producers, member
cooperatives and our own domestic and export facilities, we move
grain into the marketplace 365 days a year. By building strong
relationships among our business operations and suppliers, we
keep reliable supplies of quality energy, crop nutrients and food
ingredients headed to our customers. And by maintaining a
diverse portfolio of complementary businesses, we continue
to add value for all our stakeholders in a constantly changing
marketplace.
There’s no question that these combined forces contributed significantly to yet another successful year for CHS in fiscal 2010,
even as global and domestic economies remained sluggish and
market events challenged some of our business operations. For
the fiscal year ending Aug. 31, 2010, CHS is reporting net income
of $502.2 million, the fourth best in the company’s eight decades.
Net revenues for the year reached $25.3 billion, down 2 percent,
reflecting lower values for the commodities that make up much
of our business.
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Behind those results — detailed throughout this annual report
— are stories of how CHS businesses successfully adapted to
market forces, met customer needs and delivered strong financial
performance, in many cases record or near-record earnings.
As our mission states, we measure our success by our ability to
grow the company’s profitability, as we’ve continued to do for
many years, and by our ability to return stakeholder value in
the form of reliable products and services, future growth and,
for our owners, financial return on their investment. In fiscal
2010, based on strong fiscal 2009 earnings, CHS returned $237
million in cash to our owners in the form of cash patronage, equity
redemptions, preferred stock and dividends.
Even as we celebrate what we’ve achieved together in 2010, we’re
focused on making certain that CHS succeeds long-term. Over
the past few years, our 2020 Vision project has reshaped how we
identify and respond to the market forces that affect our businesses short-term and has helped us envision what we must do to
continue meeting long-term customer needs. Based on this clear
vision, we will strive to be a producer-focused organization that
meets always-evolving product and services needs, to expand
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our global capabilities in agriculture and energy commodities, to
grow as an oilseed and grain-based foods business, to expand our
energy platform, and to deliver even greater value by leveraging
the full capabilities of the total CHS enterprise.

Forces of Change
John Johnson, CHS president and chief executive offi-

Thank you for joining forces with CHS during a very successful 2010. We look forward to working with you to maintain this
momentum to deliver even greater value for all stakeholders in
the years ahead.

cer since 2000, will retire at the close of calendar 2010.
The CHS Board of Directors thanks John for his years
of outstanding leadership, which has contributed to the
company’s consistent growth and success on behalf of
its member-owners and other stakeholders.

john d. johnson
President and Chief Executive Officer

michael toelle
Chairman, Board of Directors
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Giving crops added value

100%

of corn purchased and
DDGS marketed through CHS

The 120 million-gallon Absolute Energy, LLC, ethanol plant literally straddles
the Iowa-Minnesota border. But there’s no straddling when it comes to buying
millions of bushels of corn to feed the producer-owned facility or selling
distillers dried grains with solubles (DDGS), a feed ingredient created as a
byproduct of ethanol production. Rick Schwarck, the company’s founder and
president, and his team count on CHS to keep a steady stream of corn headed
to the plant, help manage grain market risk, and find customers — including
livestock producers in Asia — for golden mountains of DDGS.

above: Railcars are readied to move ethanol and DDGS from the Absolute Energy plant in Lyle, Minn., to markets from coast to coast. below: Ethanol heads out to
fuel vehicles, while DDGS, with high protein content and excellent palatability, is an increasingly popular livestock feed ingredient.
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Satisfying Portuguese appetites

90 years

of high-quality flours, pastas & cookies

From modern supermarkets to corner stands, walk into any food store in
Portugal, and Cerealis will be there. A two-family business venture that
started in 1919 in the medieval-era seaside city of Porto, Cerealis is now a
dominant player in milling, pasta production and cookie manufacturing
in its home country and reaches a growing number of markets around the
world. When sourcing the durum wheat needed for high-grade semolina
pasta flour and hard red wheat for other products, grain trading manager
João Amorim Faria turns to CHS for the quality and logistical assurance
he needs, explaining that CHS has “the positioning and characteristics that
fit our values and direction.”

above: João Amorim Faria and Linda Barclay, CHS grain marketer, examine the new state-of-the-art Cerealis semolina mill in Maia, Portugal. below: Ana Maria Barbosa,
Cerealis sales representative, makes certain the company’s leading Milaneza pasta brand is well represented on grocery shelves.
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Energizing quality

15%

average efficiency gain
with Cenex premium diesel fuel
®

There are no breaks for the feed trucks that travel the unpaved roads
crisscrossing Niewohner’s Cattle Company feedlot at Elgin, Neb. And there
can’t be breakdowns when thousands of animals must be fed. Frustrated
with engine performance, trucking manager Lenny Vaisvilas told Certified
Energy Specialist Mike Gullikson of Advanced Energy Fuels, LLC, he was
ready to try Cenex® Roadmaster XL® premium diesel fuel. Within a few
days, his drivers dubbed it “racing fuel,” and the operation was reporting
15 percent fuel efficiency gains. When heavy equipment engines, redesigned
to handle ultra-low-sulfur fuels, began experiencing problems, CHS
responded with additives for its time-tested premium diesel products that
met the challenge.

above: While it may never leave the feedlot, this truck racks up countless hours of continuous loops to keep hungry cattle fed. Switching to Cenex® Ruby Fieldmaster®
premium diesel fuel improved performance and mileage. below: A major investment in farm equipment demands top performance. New additive packages for Cenex
Ruby Fieldmaster and Roadmaster XL® diesel fuels help customers address issues arising from ultra-low-sulfur fuel mandates.
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Planning for Future Success

33%

of cooperative managers
will soon reach retirement age

For 30 years, the names Rich Stipe and Whatcom Farmers Co-op have been
synonymous in Lynden, Wash., just south of the Canadian border. In mid2011, that era will end as Stipe, the sole general manager in the co-op’s history,
retires. To maintain momentum, the Whatcom Farmers Board of Directors
called on CHS Business Solutions Consulting to prepare for the significant
change ahead, to help find a successor and to ready the management team
for the transition, while capturing Stipe’s institutional knowledge. Whatcom
Farmers will also rely on its long-term relationships with CHS product areas
and services from Ag States Group and Cofina Financial, LLC, to maintain
operational continuity during the transition.

above: from left, Rich Stipe signed on as Whatcom Farmers Co-op’s leader when the business was created. Now, 30 years later, he’s relying on CHS system partners, including
Kurt Allender and Ron Sholtys of Ag States Group, and Allan Larson and Ed Gunderson of Business Solutions Consulting, to help ensure the cooperative doesn’t skip a
beat after his retirement. below: CHS Business Solutions Consulting has developed a comprehensive custom program to ready the organization’s team for the transition.
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Stewards of our Communities

100%

of Northern Plains
employees give back

Ask Northern Plains General Manager Todd Oster of Gettysburg, S.D.,
how many of his 100 employees volunteer in their communities and his
answer is quick and simple: “All of them.” As a major business in remote
north-central South Dakota and south-central North Dakota, Oster knows
Northern Plains employees who double as volunteer firefighters, coaches, FFA
and 4-H advisors, local arts activists, and more. And he also knows those
contributions are essential to enriching rural lives. When a late June 2010
tornado devastated the small town of Dupree, Northern Plains volunteers
were among the first to respond with cleanup help at its branch location,
followed by financial assistance from CHS.

above: By day, Alison Stone is a sales agronomist for Northern Plains. Some evenings, she takes on a new role as an actor and leader in a recently revived Eureka,
S.D., theater company. Stone relishes the opportunity to contribute to her community’s cultural fabric. below: A tornado’s destruction left few structures untouched
in the town of Dupree, including the Northern Plains grain elevator, now being repaired and expanded.
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review of operations

energy
The ability to manage nimbly within diverse energy market
forces contributed to record results for CHS propane, renewable
fuels and lubricants businesses, while allowing the company’s
refined fuels business to succeed amid shifting global and domes-

recognize the premium-quality fuel and friendly service found
at about 1,500 Cenex locations. A number of new alliances with
quick-service food retailers were established in 2010, allowing
retailers to provide high-quality, turnkey food offerings that best

tic demand and a weak economy.

suit their customer base. And a new credit card and loyalty program with the outdoor merchandise retailer and direct marketer
Cabela’s Incorporated delivered results beyond expectations.

Excess U.S. inventories, the continued economic slowdown and
increased state-mandated tax burdens put margin pressure on
CHS refined fuels operations in 2010. Fluctuating crude oil prices
and increased refining capacity in emerging countries, including
China and India, were just two factors that affected profitability
for many small refiners in 2010, including the wholly owned
CHS refinery at Laurel, Mont., and the National Cooperative
Refinery Association at McPherson, Kan., in which CHS is
majority owner. Dozens of improvements were made to those
refineries during the year, both to meet federal requirements for
reduced emissions and benzene content in fuels, and to provide
added safety for employees.

Responding to market forces
Innovative business arrangements drove growth in 2010. One
example is Advanced Energy Fuels, LLC, a Nebraska joint venture with CHS Country Operations to provide fuels, lubricants
and propane to customers of Central Valley Ag Cooperative. This
new venture, as well as growing numbers of other customers,
benefits from the proven Cenex Automated Fuel Delivery System
that incorporates sensor-equipped fuel tanks, computer-aided
delivery trucks and a there-when-you-need-it strategy to provide
customers with a consistent fuel supply.
New pockets of demand for fuels, lubricants and other energy
products, including companies in North Dakota oil fields, opened
doors to additional customers for premium diesel fuel, lubricants
and other energy products.
The competitive sales environment challenged all energy retailers, even as CHS and its Cenex brand expanded relationships
and consumer awareness throughout the company’s trade region.
A three-year Cenex retail image upgrade program wrapped up at
the close of fiscal 2010. The fresh look draws retail customers who
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Convenience stores, fueling stations and other retail businesses
accepting credit cards must meet increasingly stringent standards
for data privacy and protection. With help from CHS, nearly all
Cenex-branded retailers met new compliance standards before
the July 2010 deadline. The CHS retail system has been certified compliant every year since the new standards were set in
2006 and has invested more than $2 million to ensure customer
data is protected.
Government-mandated fuel standards enacted in recent years,
intended to reduce emissions and protect the environment, have
resulted in performance concerns for customers with costly heavy
equipment. CHS energy experts took the lead, responding to customer concerns with an enhanced additive package in all Cenex
premium diesel fuels, including Cenex Ruby Fieldmaster and
Roadmaster XL. The result: top fleet productivity and efficiency.
The ability to push back against Mother Nature’s forces helped
the CHS propane business post record earnings for fiscal 2010.
As an exceptionally wet and cold but bountiful 2009 corn harvest
triggered unprecedented propane drying demand, CHS sprang
to action by shifting supplies, calling on CHS Transportation,
and staying in constant contact with CHS customers to ensure
they received the propane they needed. Given these and other
supply-demand forces, effective risk management has never
been more important. Long before harvest began, the CHS team
worked closely with customers to understand their supply and
price risk management needs. The resulting customized Propane
Retail Excellence Plans helped meet specific needs for supply
and forward contracting.
Propane sales also expanded significantly on the eastern reaches
of the CHS trade area. The increased volume helped improve
efficiency and ready supply for all CHS propane customers. All

clockwise, from left: Farm businesses count on Cenex premium diesel fuel for
never-missing-a-beat performance. Todd Priester calls Ruby Fieldmaster
premium diesel fuel “a reliable fuel that makes a difference on my bottom line.”

customers gained access to the upgraded Propane Control Room™,
a Web-based system that provides customers with instant access
and key information on propane transactions, including manifest
management and forward contracts. Efforts to serve customers
went beyond supply. During the year, CHS was instrumental in
achieving resolution on a pipeline tariff dispute that awarded
more than $25 million to the propane industry. CHS returned its
share — more than $6 million — to its propane customers who
paid the excess tariffs.

Enviro-Edge™ engine oil, in its first full year after introduction,
gained recognition as an option for high-efficiency performance
and reduced greenhouse gas emissions. And the CHS Certified
Energy Specialist program continued to grow with more than
100 well-trained specialists being deployed to work directly with
energy customers.

Lubricants delivered record profits in 2010 and increased overall
product volume by more than 25 percent. In addition to top-rated
Cenex lubricants and the company’s Farm-Oyl® brand, volume
of nonbranded products grew, in part through establishment of
a long-term private label production agreement with a major
oil company.

Constantly adapting to shifting economic and business forces,
the CHS Transportation fleet traveled more than 33 million
miles in 2010, delivering more than 1 billion gallons of refined
and renewable fuels, 350 million gallons of propane and butane,
340,000 tons of crop nutrients, and more than 300,000 tons of
soy oil across the United States and Canada. Onboard computers
and state-of-the-art communications systems provided exceptional efficiency, tracking and performance to keep customers
informed and supplied.

Synthetic engine oils, extended drain intervals and more efficient
equipment have reduced the need for frequent oil changes. The
declining demand means energy retailers must develop business opportunities beyond agriculture. CHS energy personnel
partnered with retailers to identify and address potential new
customers in small- to medium-sized trucking companies eager
to minimize downtime and daily operating costs. In addition,
the successful Cenex lubricants terminal system helped customers reduce inventory and stabilize product pricing. Maxtron®

CHS Renewable Fuels Marketing successfully addressed industry ethanol production overcapacity by extending its reach to
ethanol customers in Canada and expanding its southeastern
United States customer base, supported by a new ethanol distribution venture in Collins, Miss. Execution and management of
over-the-counter financial hedging tools provided a value-added
service that helped CHS ethanol plant customers manage price
risk. Volume grew in fiscal 2010 and CHS now markets approximately 5 percent of the ethanol produced in the United States.
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ag business
As the third-largest U.S. grain company — handling 1.9 billion
bushels annually — CHS continues to grow as a vibrant force
in global grain trade for producers and customers, even as the
company anticipates, adjusts for and manages around market,
weather and economic forces. While fiscal 2010 brought reduced
market volatility, uncertainty about worldwide political, trading
and weather issues remained driving forces. With its strategic
commitment to year-round global grain sourcing and relationships in key domestic and international grain-production areas,
CHS delivered financial strength, along with expertise in logistics
and risk management, with results far exceeding expectations.

Finding new sources
The CHS presence in diverse grain-producing areas became
essential late in fiscal 2010, as major drought and damaging fires

16

2010 CHS annual report

in the Black Sea region significantly reduced grain output there.
A strong U.S. wheat harvest in 2010 helped fill customer needs, as
did grain from earlier harvests in South America. Government
intervention in the Black Sea region also underscored the need
for a broad array of risk management strategies and highlighted
the value of CHS logistics and infrastructure support. CHS sees
continued long-term need for infrastructure development in
emerging global grain regions as essential to meeting the world’s
growing demand for food. CHS soybean sales to China reached
new marks, highlighting that growing global grain demand. The
company also strengthened its role as a major supplier of the feed
ingredient DDGS (a byproduct of ethanol manufacturing) to
Pacific Rim nations, where growing household income is driving
demand for more meat and other high-protein foods. Enhanced
export facilities in several parts of the United States, including
the Pacific Northwest and Myrtle Grove, La., make shipping
these large volumes possible.

As an integrated supply chain from producer to consumer, the
CHS system builds value into each link by providing the supply
and quality customers expect. To add greater strength, the company established grain marketing and crop nutrients presence in
Buenos Aires, Argentina, and Amman, Jordan; formalized an
agreement with Moscow-based Agrico Group to ensure access to
Russian grain; and saw completion of a new joint venture grain
export terminal in Odessa, Ukraine. CHS also operates grain
offices in Switzerland, Ukraine, Brazil, China and Spain.

supply used on U.S. farms sourced globally, having market-savvy
personnel who manage delivery times, price risk and supply concerns at the local level is paramount. The largely region-focused
marketing structure allows inventory and pricing decisions to be
made closer to the final crop nutrients use, which maximizes the
ability to reflect local markets and optimize logistics.

Serving more customers

Meeting global demand was the theme for CHS Sunflower in fiscal 2010, as well. Sales of confectionary sunflower seed to international customers exceeded expectations, while wild bird food
sales set new volume records. The quality of in-shell sunflower

Significant partnerships and rapid expansion typified 2010 for
Country Operations, the CHS retail agribusiness unit. These locations offer products and services to growers, ranging from grain
Despite coming off one of the most challenging and volatile peri- marketing, crop nutrients, seed, agronomic expertise, livestock
ods in agriculture history, CHS Crop Nutrients maintained its nutrition and energy products to financial and risk management
steadfast focus on creating strategic global and local partnerships services. These businesses, most guided by locally elected boards
that ensure supply and minimize risk.
of producer-directors, are dedicated to providing area producers
with quality products and services at competitive prices. That
Deeper connections with customers, robust purchasing and sup- local retail presence and knowledge is backed by the sound, strong
ply options, and global knowledge all contributed to profitabil- CHS system.
ity in 2010 and, more important, established a solid foundation
for the future in a dynamic marketplace. At every level, efforts During the year, Country Operations expanded with partnerships
were focused on driving greater value to customers. Investments in Illinois and Texas and added locations and services in North
behind the scenes, through technology and staffing efficiencies, Dakota, Nebraska and other regions to provide customers with
and on the front lines, with facility upgrades, allowed CHS to get enhanced input availability, risk management and market access,
product where and when it was needed during the compressed, as well as greater access to global and domestic grain markets. At
high-demand spring season. Timely market insight and astute the close of fiscal 2010, Country Operations included about 400
on-the-ground observations by CHS international crop nutrients locations divided among nearly 70 business units and employed
personnel enhanced global sourcing from as many as 19 countries. more than 4,500 people to serve local customers.

Working with customers to identify specific business needs, the
crop nutrients business continued its focus on creating strategic
partnerships that improve warehouse, storage and logistical needs.
Partnerships with two cooperatives in the Eastern Corn Belt provided a strategic distribution point to serve CHS customers across
the region. With unit train service, these partnerships further
improve the ability of CHS to position and efficiently distribute
large volumes in narrow time frames. With much of the nutrient

clockwise, from left: Harvest is part of a full circle for the Edgington
brothers of St. Ansgar, Iowa. They market their grain through CHS for
delivery to the Absolute Energy ethanol plant, where they are owners.

products provided by CHS was lauded in Iraq, Syria, Jordan and
Egypt, increasing demand for the company’s Agway® products.
To help bring improved sunflower genetics to other countries,
selected varieties were licensed for production outside the United
States, bringing record volume to the sunflower seed development program.
CHS Nutrition realigned its marketing approach during 2010
to create stronger and more efficient connections with livestock
producers in its diverse geography. It supplies animal nutrition
products and services from the central United States to the Pacific
Northwest under the Payback® and Equis® brands.
2010 CHS annual report
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processing
Domestic and global economic pressures and weather-driven
harvest issues in 2009 shaped fiscal 2010 for CHS processing
businesses. A long-range view and the ability to capitalize on
short-term developments helped the business unit add value for
its customers. During the first half of fiscal 2010, U.S. soybean,
soybean meal and soy oil exports hit record marks, maximizing
capacity and strengthening margins.
At home, reduced demand for soybean meal from economically
strapped Midwestern poultry and pork producers challenged
business early in the year, with a continued sluggish economy
putting pressure on foodservice sales of soy oil and also affecting Ventura Foods, LLC, the vegetable oil–based food packager,
manufacturer and distributor with 50 percent ownership by CHS.
By the end of fiscal 2010, the combined forces of reduced commodity price volatility, strategic risk management, slightly improved
demand and near-record volume combined to help the oilseed
business deliver solid profitability.
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As a system based on relationships with soybean and other commodity producers, CHS is uniquely able to respond to shifting
demand for specific traits in foods and food ingredients. With
more local and state governments banning trans fats in foods, CHS
continues its efforts to meet evolving market demand.
Continuous analysis and improvement in daily processes to boost
efficiency and protect the environment were an emphasis for oilseed processing personnel during the year. Increased consumer
scrutiny of food safety and food security also meant proactive
changes to processing operations and closer communications with
USDA, FDA, and state and federal regulatory agencies.

Improving nutrition
High-protein soy flour was produced in record volumes in 2010,
and this valuable product was distributed worldwide to increase
the nutritional value of foods. CHS Protein Foods Group, a global

leader in texturized soy–based foods and pet food ingredients,
also produced a growing volume of products that help provide
much-needed protein at lower cost than other forms for specialty
markets and global consumers. The group sells soy protein products to customers in the United States, Mexico, Canada, Puerto
Rico, New Zealand, Indonesia and the Philippines.
The small, but important, biodiesel market changed drastically
in January 2010 as government credits for use of biodiesel ended.
This change significantly reduced demand for soy oil intended
for biodiesel production.

Creating added value
Ventura Foods, the joint venture between CHS and Mitsui & Co.,
Ltd., completed a successful year, despite it being a difficult time
for mid-level dining establishments due to the economic downturn. Stronger relationships with distributors helped increase
sales through that market segment, and increased interest in
home cooking helped support Ventura Foods brands such as
Marie’s® dressings and Dean’s® dips. Opportunities to develop
new recipes and value-driven offerings for respected food chains,
such as Culver’s, also strengthened Ventura Foods results.
Horizon Milling, the wheat milling joint venture with Cargill,
completed its second-best year ever, supported by strong demand
for flour, excellent margins and successful risk management
related to wheat supply. Connections with wheat producers and
systemwide synergy paid off in this business as well, as growers
in North Dakota and Idaho used variable-rate, strategic application techniques to optimize inputs and reduce risk of exceeding
the crop’s need for nutrients. The resulting “eco-friendly wheat”
from those acres goes directly to a major baker, which markets
the improved, environmentally friendly production method.
clockwise from left: Baking laboratory employees constantly test samples
at the Cerealis mill in Lisbon, Portugal, to ensure products headed to
Portuguese consumers meet the highest expectations. Cerealis uses several
ports, including this one on the Leixoes River in Porto, to import grain for
its five Portuguese production centers. Cerealis President and Chairman
José Amorim, grain trading manager João Amorim Faria and CHS grain
marketer Linda Barclay discuss current market issues.

In March 2010, CHS was named one of the two most admired
U.S. food and grocery wholesale companies for the ninth consecutive year by Fortune. The ranking considers nine key attributes
of reputation, including innovation, people management, social
responsibility, and quality of products and services.

2010 CHS annual report
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business solut
The ability to understand and influence external forces, while
optimizing a diverse, committed global workforce, characterized
fiscal 2010 for CHS corporate efforts and its customer-focused
Business Solutions area. These far-reaching entities continued
to grow in capability as they worked together more effectively to
provide CHS enterprise value for all stakeholders.
Continued demand for risk management of all types for increasingly complex grower and retailer businesses reinforced the value
of CHS offerings in hedging, insurance and financial services;
human resources; and long-range planning. The global nature
of today’s agribusiness and the demographic certainty of an
aging workforce, with many member cooperative managers nearing retirement, made these sophisticated services and strategic
counsel vital to the long-term success of individual businesses
and the CHS system.
Country Hedging, Inc., the full-service commodity brokerage
service and one of Futures Industry magazine’s top 50 commercial futures commission merchants, helped clients meet marketing and profit goals amid volatile global commodity markets.
Using techniques honed through grain marketing experience,
Country Hedging launched additional consulting services in
energy marketing. Innovative choices provided customers with
up-to-the-minute data and analysis, including video reports, text
messaging and Twitter feeds.
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Challenging insurance market conditions persisted in fiscal 2010,
along with the general economic downturn, resulting in excess
industry capacity, increased competition and reduced income
for insurance suppliers. In response, Ag States Group, the CHS
insurance risk management services business, extended its reach
beyond the agribusiness and energy sectors to help fill this gap and
drive growth. Named an industry leader in third-party rankings,
Ag States Group also expanded its Impact Risk Solutions insurance brokerage subsidiary and added alternative risk financing
programs to provide additional options for risk management and
cost containment to customers throughout the region.
National emphasis on health care and increasing costs for health
insurance and related benefits were the drivers behind additional
Ag States Group health and wellness offerings. By recognizing
and responding to early signs of health concerns, customers can
address those issues quickly to enhance wellness and reduce
overall health insurance costs. Similarly, expansion of the group’s
safety and regulatory compliance services brought state-of-the-art
processes and guidance from in-house safety directors to more
than 100 Ag States Group customer companies.

Delivering guidance, education

Cofina Financial, LLC, the CHS financing subsidiary, navigated
through the year’s lower commodity prices and historically low
interest rates. After a challenging 2009 marked by fluctuating
inventory values and reduced profitability, many retail customers saw improvement as financial, retail and commodity markets
stablilized. Cofina Financial continued to work with its customers in forecasting capital needs, assessing financial capacity and
determining what’s possible in order to help customers succeed.

CHS Business Solutions Consulting continued to combine customized planning support and counsel with industry-specific insight and
knowledge programs that cater to the unique needs of cooperative
and local retail businesses. Strategic partnerships with some of the
most progressive businesses allowed CHS experts to lead customers
through market, business, organizational and talent development.
Systemwide training offerings for directors, managers and other
employees drew record numbers of attendees in 2010, providing
new approaches, skills development and current information on
business management fundamentals.

Cofina Financial also forged stronger ties across CHS businesses,
such as financing ethanol manufacturers who also partner with
CHS Renewable Fuels Marketing and sell DDGS through CHS.
This multifaceted approach supports customers through stronger
understanding of their entire business.

Business Solutions Consulting continues to provide leadership
for customers repositioning businesses for long-term success,
as well as playing an integral role in the major CHS objective
of connecting customers to the value of working with the broad
CHS product and service enterprise.

2010 CHS annual report
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clockwise, from left: CHS Business Solutions Consultant Ed Gunderson,
Whatcom Farmers General Manager Rich Stipe and CHS Senior
Recruiting Specialist Allan Larson review strategies for the
cooperative’s leadership transition. With propane sales a growing
part of his company’s business, Stipe relies on Ron Sholtys and
Kurt Allender of Ag States Group for insurance risk management services.

The looming reality of the pending retirements of member cooperative leaders has heightened the need for succession planning
and recruitment assistance. CHS Business Solutions Consulting
has already helped a number of these businesses plan for succes-

change legislation’s negative impact on growers and agribusiness, independent petroleum refiners, and oilseed processors,
who would bear the brunt of attempts to reduce atmospheric
greenhouse gases without taking significant steps to reduce

sion, as well as identify and hire new CEOs and general managers
using a proven process that provides focus and objectivity.

vehicle emissions. The team focused on maintaining congressional and regulator support for the critical Capper Volstead Act
for cooperatives, as well as a variety of tax laws and regulations
affecting cooperatives, agriculture and energy. The CHS Board of
Directors, key CHS leaders and member-customers represented
the system in these discussions in Washington, D.C., and across
the United States.

While delivering these much-needed services to customers, CHS
placed stronger focus on compliance and risk management at the
corporate level during the year, establishing a new compliance
department and sharpening its companywide focus on insurance
risk management. The result is a more deliberate and strategic
approach to doing business for a Fortune 100 company with
worldwide assets, inventory and personnel.

CHS Foundation, the principal giving entity of CHS, continued to
elevate its focus on developing the next generation of rural leaders.
The foundation expanded its scholarship program, doubling the
The demand for information delivered more quickly and with number of grants provided to high school graduates planning to
greater personalization drove enhanced communications offer- study agriculture at two- or four-year colleges. In its first full year,
ings through new media vehicles. CHS communications profes- the foundation’s mini-grants program helped dozens of college
sionals also worked to increase the depth of information provided student organizations make an impact on campuses and comabout the system — leveraging traditional communication tools munities. The foundation continued to enhance understanding
and new technologies — and continued to collaborate with CHS of the value of cooperative business through educational grants
business units to provide a unified voice.
and hosting networking events that gave college students the
opportunity to learn from cooperative professionals. CHS and
Many of the year’s most significant national legislative and regu- its employees continued to support the United Way and other
latory discussions were critical to CHS stakeholders. The CHS charitable organizations through donations and volunteer time.
governmental affairs team voiced system concerns over climate To learn more, visit CHSstewards.com.
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highlights
Fiscal 2010 was a year of unique global economic forces and markets that
again demonstrated the ability of CHS to deliver value for its owners.
Unlike fiscal 2008, with its unprecedented commodity prices
and demand, or fiscal 2009, which was characterized by a major
global economic downturn, fiscal 2010 (Sept. 1, 2009, through
Aug. 31, 2010) brought ongoing market nuances requiring
knowledgeable and nimble responses.

opportunity to generate record earnings. Petroleum refining
margins fell dramatically for the first six months as a continued
weak economy depressed demand and crude oil inventories grew.
Markets recovered in the third quarter of fiscal 2010, resulting
in solid fiscal 2010 profitability for refined fuels, as well.

The fiscal year ended with all CHS businesses reporting profitability, many of them at record or near-record levels. Net income
of $502.2 million was the fourth best in the company’s eight
decades, up 32 percent from fiscal 2009. Revenues of $25.3 billion — reflecting fluctuations in the energy, grain and crop nutrient products that make up the bulk of CHS business — declined
a slight 1.8 percent from fiscal 2009.

The CHS Processing segment includes its own oilseed crushing
and refining operations, along with ownership in Horizon Milling,
LLC, and Ventura Foods, LLC. Slightly improved demand and
near-record volumes contributed to CHS Oilseed Processing
performance. Ventura Foods, the vegetable oil–based food manufacturing joint venture, drew on solid customer relationships
to achieve strong earnings during the continued downturn for
the foodservice sector. The flour joint venture Horizon Milling
combined increased demand with solid margins and risk management to achieve its second-best year. Overall earnings for
the Processing segment were strong in fiscal 2010, with all businesses contributing solid performance.

Performance was led by the company’s Ag Business segment. The
company’s retail Country Operations unit posted record earnings,
while grain marketing generated strong profits with its ability
to manage through global origination and demand challenges.
Crop nutrients achieved a strong recovery in fiscal 2010 after
posting significant losses the previous year that were precipitated
CHS Business Solutions operations, recorded within the
by rapid global devaluation of product inventories.
“Corporate and Other” category, reported lower earnings for
fiscal 2010, as a result of an ongoing soft market for insurance
Fiscal 2010 was a period of market fluctuations for the Energy
services and continued slow activity within the company’s hedgsegment. The year opened with record fall propane demand for
ing and risk management and financing businesses, driven by
crop drying, followed by a strong winter heating season. CHS
reduced market volatility and continued record low interest rates.
lubricants and renewable fuels businesses also captured market
No matter what external forces are in play, a company’s success
is measured by its ability to add value. CHS achieved this in two
important ways during fiscal 2010. CHS provided a strong financial
return to its owners — based on fiscal 2009 results — in the form of
$237 million in cash patronage, equity redemptions, and preferred
stock and dividends. In fiscal 2011, based on 2010 earnings, the
company expects to return about $231 million. In addition, CHS
ended its fiscal year with an extremely strong balance sheet and
a return on equity of 16.2 percent. This continued solid financial
position will allow the company to stay on track by prudently
left: Northern Plains General Manager Todd Oster checks on the readyinvesting in both existing businesses and new opportunities to
to-market wheat crop. The local CHS operation based at Gettysburg, S.D.,
create long-term value for its stakeholders.
combines excellent service with a strong community presence.
22

2010 CHS annual report

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

28.4
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153.1
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339.5
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overview
CHS Inc. (CHS or the Company) is a diversiﬁed energy, grains

the equity method of accounting, wherein CHS records its pro-

and foods company committed to providing the essential
resources that enrich lives around the world. As a cooperative,

portionate share of income or loss reported by the entity as
equity income from investments without consolidating the rev-

the Company is owned by farmers, ranchers and their member

enues and expenses of the entity in the Company’s Consolidated

cooperatives across the United States. The Company also has
preferred stockholders that own shares of the Company’s 8%

Statements of Operations. These investments principally
include the Company’s 50% ownership in each of the following

Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock.

companies; Agriliance LLC, TEMCO, LLC and United Harvest,

The Company provides a full range of agricultural inputs such

LLC, and a 45% ownership in Multigrain S.A. included in our
Ag Business segment; 50% ownership in Ventura Foods, LLC,

as reﬁned fuels, propane, farm supplies, animal nutrition and
agronomy products, as well as services, which include hedging,
ﬁnancing and insurance. CHS owns and operates petroleum

Milling G.P., included in our Processing segment.

reﬁneries and pipelines and markets and distributes reﬁned
fuels and other energy products under the Cenex» brand

The following commentary is an overview of the results of

through a network of member cooperatives and independents.

for the year ended August 31, 2010, and the two previous years.
These comments should be read in conjunction with the accom-

The Company purchases grains and oilseeds directly and indirectly from agricultural producers primarily in the midwestern
and western United States. These grains and oilseeds are sold to
domestic and international customers, or further processed into
a variety of grain-based foods products.
The consolidated ﬁnancial statements include the accounts of
CHS and all of its wholly-owned and majority-owned subsidiaries and limited liability companies, primarily the National
Cooperative Reﬁnery Association (NCRA), included in our
Energy segment. The effects of all signiﬁcant intercompany
transactions have been eliminated.
The Company operates three segments: Energy, Ag Business
and Processing. Corporate and Other primarily represents the
Company’s business solutions operations, which consists of
commodities hedging, ﬁnancial and insurance services related
to crop production. Summary data for each of these segments for
ﬁscal years ended August 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, is shown in
Segment Reporting of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
While the Company’s revenues and operating results are
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and 24% ownership in Horizon Milling, LLC and Horizon

operations and ﬁnancial position of the Company, as of and

panying ﬁnancial statements and related notes appearing elsewhere in this report, as well as in the Company’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the ﬁscal year ended August 31, 2010, ﬁled
with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Consolidated Results
of Operations
NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO CHS INC. for the year
ended August 31, 2010, was $502.2 million compared to
$381.4 million for 2009, which represents an increase of
$120.8 million (32%). The Company recognized improved earnings before income taxes of $80.2 million (16%), of which
$195.6 million and $70.6 million were in our Ag Business
and Processing segments, respectively. These increases were
partially offset by reduced earnings of $184.3 million and
$1.7 million within our Energy segment and Corporate and
Other, respectively, as compared to 2009. Net income attributable to CHS Inc. for the year ended August 31, 2008,
was $803.0 million.

derived from businesses and operations which are wholly-

REVENUES of $25.3 billion for the year ended August 31, 2010,

owned and majority-owned, a portion of business operations
are conducted through companies in which CHS holds owner-

compared to $25.7 billion for 2009, which represents a decrease
of $0.4 billion (2%). Our revenues in Ag Business and Processing

ship interests of 50% or less and does not control the operations.

segments, and Corporate and Other decreased $1.5 billion (9%),

The Company accounts for these investments primarily using

$80.1 million (7%) and $0.4 million (1%), respectively, primarily
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as the result of decreased average selling prices. Our revenues in

$76.5 million for the year ended August 31, 2008, includes

the Energy segment increased $1.1 billion (15%) related to
increases in average selling prices and net volumes. Revenues

interest expense of $100.1 million and was partially offset by
capitalized interest of $9.7 million and interest income

for the year ended August 31, 2008, were $32.2 billion.

of $13.9 million.

COST OF GOODS SOLD of $24.4 billion for the year ended

EQUITY INCOME FROM INVESTMENTS of $108.8 million for

August 31, 2010, decreased $0.5 billion (2%) compared to
2009, primarily due to lower grain commodity prices, partially

the year ended August 31, 2010, increased $3.0 million (3%)
compared to 2009. The net increase was attributable to

offset by higher energy prices. Our cost of goods sold in Ag

improved earnings from investments within our Ag Business

Business and Processing segments decreased $1.7 billion (10%)
and $79.6 million (7%), respectively, primarily as the result of

and Energy segments of $7.0 million and $1.5 million, respectively, and was partially offset by reduced equity investment

decreased average purchase prices. Our cost of goods sold in the

earnings in our Processing segment, along with Corporate and

Energy segment increased $1.3 billion (19%) due to increases in
average purchase prices and volumes. Cost of goods sold for the

Other of $5.4 million and $0.1 million, respectively. Equity

year ended August 31, 2008, was $31.0 billion.
MARKETING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE expenses of
$366.6 million for the year ended August 31, 2010, increased
$11.3 million (3%) compared to 2009, and primarily includes
continued expansion of international ofﬁces and other acquisitions. Marketing, general and administrative expenses for the
year ended August 31, 2008, were $330.0 million.
(GAIN) LOSS ON INVESTMENTS was a gain of $29.4 million for
the year ended August 31, 2010, compared to a loss of $56.3 million during fiscal 2009. Gain on investments for the year ended
August 31, 2008, was $29.2 million. During 2010, we recorded a
gain on our investment in Agriliance of $28.4 million in our Ag
Business segment. During 2009, we recorded a $74.3 million loss
on our investment in VeraSun in our Processing segment, due to
their bankruptcy, which was in addition to the loss during 2008 of
$72.5 million. During 2008, we sold our remaining shares of CF
stock and recorded a gain of $91.7 million. We had various other
sales of investments during 2010, 2009 and 2008 for net gains of
$1.0 million, $18.0 million and $10.0 million, respectively.
INTEREST, NET of $58.3 million for the year ended August 31,
2010, decreased $12.2 million (17%) compared to 2009. Interest

income from investments for the year ended August 31,
2008, was $150.4 million.
INCOME TAX expense was $48.4 million for the year ended
August 31, 2010, compared with $63.3 million for 2009, resulting in effective tax rates of 8.3% and 12.6%, respectively. The
federal and state statutory rate applied to nonpatronage business
activity was 38.9% for each of the three years ended August 31,
2010. The income taxes and effective tax rate vary each year
based upon proﬁtability and nonpatronage business activity
during each of the comparable years. Income tax expense for
the year ended August 31, 2008, was $71.9 million, resulting in
an effective tax rate of 7.6%.
NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS of $33.2 million for the year
ended August 31, 2010, decreased $25.7 million (44%) compared to 2009, as a result of less proﬁtable operations within the
Company’s majority-owned subsidiaries. Substantially all noncontrolling interests are related to NCRA, in which the Company holds a 74.5% interest. Noncontrolling interests for the year
ended August 31, 2008, were $71.8 million.

Consolidated Balance Sheets
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS of $5.3 billion on August 31, 2010,

expense during ﬁscal years 2010 and 2009, was $69.9 million

increased $570.8 million (12%) compared to 2009. The increases

and $85.7 million, respectively. Capitalized interest for ﬁscal
years 2010 and 2009 was $6.2 million and $5.2 million, respec-

included receivables of $80.3 million, inventories of $435.1 million,
derivative assets of $75.3 million and other current assets of

tively. Interest income for ﬁscal years 2010 and 2009 was

$358.0 million, and were partially offset by decreased cash and

$5.4 million and $10.0 million, respectively. Interest, net of

cash equivalents of $377.9 million.
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INVESTMENTS of $719.4 million on August 31, 2010,

LONG-TERM DEBT of $873.7 million on August 31, 2010,

decreased $8.5 million (1%) compared to 2009. During 2010,
CHS made investments of $38.1 million, of which $24.0 million

decreased $114.7 million (12%) compared to 2009. On

was for a Brazilian investment and also recorded gains on

$150.0 million of bank ﬁnancing, $818.1 million of private

investments of $29.4 million, primarily in our Ag Business
segment. The remaining net change in investments during

placement proceeds and $18.1 million of industrial revenue

2010 primarily included $119.3 million of proceeds from

long-term debt outstanding of $986.2 million, $112.5 million

investments redeemed and distributions received from equity
and other investments, partially offset by $19.1 million of noncash income from equity and other investments.
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT of $2.3 billion on
August 31, 2010, increased $153.7 million (7%) compared to
2009. The increase is primarily related to capital expenditures
of $324.3 million and acquisitions of $20.6 million, partially
offset by depreciation of $187.5 million and $3.7 million of net

bonds, and other notes and contracts payable. Of the total
is payable in the next 12 months.
OTHER LIABILITIES of $475.5 million on August 31, 2010,
increased $46.5 million (11%) compared to 2009.
TOTAL CHS INC. EQUITIES exceeded $3.3 billion on August 31,
2010, and increased $245.4 million (8%) compared to 2009.
Each year, based upon Board approval, the Company distributes

disposals and other activities during 2010.

a portion of annual savings from patronage sources to consenting

OTHER ASSETS of $377.2 million on August 31, 2010,
increased $80.2 million (27%) compared to 2009, primarily

2010, of which the cash portion was 35% or $153.9 million.

due to notes and other long-term receivables including Coﬁna
Financial, prepaid pension and beneﬁt plan assets and debt cost,
and were partially offset by decreases in intangibles and
deferred major maintenance.
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August 31, 2010, the Company’s total long-term debt included

patrons. Patronage earnings from 2009 were distributed during
During 2009, the Company distributed cash patronage of
$227.6 million. For the years ended August 31, 2010 and
2009, the Company also redeemed equities in the amounts of
$59.8 million and $99.6 million, respectively, of which
$36.7 million and $49.9 million, respectively, were retired using

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES of $3.7 billion on August 31,
2010, increased $593.2 million (19%) compared to 2009. The

preferred

increases included notes payable and current portion of long-

August 31, 2010 Consolidated Balance Sheet.

term debt of $44.2 million, customer credit balances and
advance payments of $263.8 million, checks and drafts out-

NONCONTROLLING

standing of $47.4 million, accounts payable of $183.0 million,

August 31, 2010, increased $25.9 million (11%) compared to

accrued expenses of $67.5 million and dividends and equities
payable of $7.4 million. The decrease in current liabilities was

2009. Substantially all minority interests relate to NCRA.

derivative liabilities of $20.1 million.

$4.9 million and $21.1 million, respectively.
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stock.

Dividends

and

equities

payable

of

$210.4 million are classiﬁed as current liabilities on the

INTERESTS

of

$268.8

million

on

Minority interest distributions during 2010 and 2009 were

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND MEMBERS AND PATRONS OF CHS INC.:
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of operations, of equities and
comprehensive income and of cash ﬂows present fairly, in all material respects, the ﬁnancial position of CHS Inc. and its
subsidiaries at August 31, 2010 and 2009, and the results of their operations and their cash ﬂows for each of the three years in
the period ended August 31, 2010, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
These ﬁnancial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
ﬁnancial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the ﬁnancial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the ﬁnancial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and
signiﬁcant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall ﬁnancial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated ﬁnancial statements, CHS Inc. changed the manner in which it accounts for
noncontrolling interests effective September 1, 2009.

Minneapolis, Minnesota
November 10, 2010
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated Balance Sheets
AUGUST 31 (DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

2010

2009

ASSETS
Current assets:
$ 394,663

$ 772,599

Receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

1,908,068

1,827,749

Inventories

1,961,376

1,526,280

Derivative assets

246,621

171,340

Other current assets

805,741

447,655

5,316,469

4,745,623

Total current assets
Investments
Property, plant and equipment
Other assets
Total assets

719,392

727,925

2,253,071

2,099,325

377,196

296,972

$8,666,128

$7,869,845

$ 262,090

$ 246,872

LIABILITIES AND EQUITIES
Current liabilities:
Notes payable
Current portion of long-term debt

112,503

83,492

Customer credit balances

423,571

274,343

Customer advance payments

435,224

320,688

Checks and drafts outstanding

134,250

86,845

1,472,145

1,289,139

Derivative liabilities

286,018

306,116

Accrued expenses

376,239

308,720

Dividends and equities payable

210,435

203,056

3,712,475

3,119,271

Long-term debt

873,738

988,461

Other liabilities

475,464

428,949

2,401,514

2,214,824

Accounts payable

Total current liabilities

Commitments and contingencies
Equities:
Equity certiﬁcates
Preferred stock
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Capital reserves
Total CHS Inc. equities
Noncontrolling interests
Total equities
Total liabilities and equities
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated ﬁnancial statements.
CHS Inc. and Subsidiaries
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319,368

282,694

(205,267)

(156,270)

820,049

749,054

3,335,664

3,090,302

268,787

242,862

3,604,451

3,333,164

$8,666,128

$7,869,845

Consolidated Statements of Operations
2010

2009

$25,267,931

$25,729,916

$32,167,461

24,397,410

24,849,901

30,993,899

Gross proﬁt

870,521

880,015

1,173,562

Marketing, general and administrative

366,582

355,299

329,965

Operating earnings

503,939

524,716

843,597

(Gain) loss on investments

(29,433)

56,305

(29,193)

58,324

70,487

76,460

(108,787)

(105,754)

(150,413)

583,835

503,678

946,743

48,438

63,304

71,861

535,397

440,374

874,882

33,238

58,967

71,837

FOR THE YEARS ENDED AUGUST 31 (DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

Revenues
Cost of goods sold

Interest, net
Equity income from investments
Income before income taxes
Income taxes
Net income
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests
Net income attributable to CHS Inc.

$

502,159

$

381,407

2008

$

803,045

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated ﬁnancial statements.
CHS Inc. and Subsidiaries
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Consolidated Statements of Equities and Comprehensive Income
EQUITY CERTIFICATES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED AUGUST 31, 2010, 2009 AND 2008

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

BALANCES, SEPTEMBER 1, 2007
Dividends and equity retirement determination
Patronage distribution
Equities retired
Capital equity certiﬁcates exchanged for preferred stock
Equities issued
Preferred stock dividends
Distributions to noncontrolling interests
Changes in dividends and equities payable
Other, net
Comprehensive income:
Net income
Other comprehensive loss
Total comprehensive income
Dividends and equities payable
BALANCES, AUGUST 31, 2008
Dividends and equity retirement determination
Patronage distribution
Equities retired
Capital equity certiﬁcates exchanged for preferred stock
Equities issued
Preferred stock dividends
Distributions to noncontrolling interests
Changes in dividends and equities payable
Adoption of retirement plan measurement date change
Other, net
Comprehensive income:
Net (loss) income
Other comprehensive loss
Total comprehensive income
Dividends and equities payable
BALANCES, AUGUST 31, 2009
Dividends and equity retirement determination
Patronage distribution
Equities retired
Capital equity certiﬁcates exchanged for preferred stock
Equities issued
Preferred stock dividends
Distributions to noncontrolling interests
Changes in dividends and equities payable
Other, net
Comprehensive income:
Net income
Other comprehensive loss
Total comprehensive income
Dividends and equities payable
BALANCES, AUGUST 31, 2010
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated ﬁnancial statements.
CHS Inc. and Subsidiaries
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CAPITAL EQUITY
CERTIFICATES

NONPATRONAGE
EQUITY CERTIFICATES

$1,265,051
179,381
362,206
(81,295)
(46,364)
4,680

$26,646

(2,057)

(804)

PATRONAGE REFUNDS

$ 357,500
192,500
(550,000)

(500)

652,000

(93,823)
1,587,779
93,823
421,289
(49,291)
(49,944)
19,594

(324)

25,342

(361)

(186)

(60,000)

(50,122)
1,912,804
50,122
284,128
(22,732)
(36,674)
616

(1,479)

(228,200)
423,800
228,200
(652,000)

426,500

24,795

(149,275)
277,225
149,275
(426,500)

(403)

181
396,500

(67,569)
$2,119,216

$24,573

(138,775)
$ 257,725

PREFERRED STOCK

ACCUMULATED OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (LOSS)

$186,411

$ 13,036

46,364

CAPITAL RESERVES

$626,811
2,413
(7,210)

NONCONTROLLING
INTERESTS

$197,386

(135)
(16,288)

412
151,045
(81,078)

232,775

(68,042)

49,944

(3,016)
754,032
3,016
3,101

(63,123)
6,080
(4,395)
71,837
(2,053)

205,732

(130)
(20,024)
(21,139)
2,747
(2,603)
414

(25)

14,907
(88,228)

282,694

(156,270)

36,674

(3,659)
749,054
3,659
(11,522)

2,960
58,967
(6,405)

242,862

(142)
(23,248)

680
105,659
(48,997)

$319,368

$(205,267)

(4,091)
$820,049

(4,870)
(1,743)
2,025
33,238
(2,725)

$268,787

TOTAL EQUITIES

$2,672,841
374,294
(195,004)
(81,795)
(135)
4,680
(16,288)
(63,123)
6,080
(6,844)
874,882
(83,131)
791,751
(325,039)
3,161,418
325,039
(227,610)
(49,652)
(130)
19,594
(20,024)
(21,139)
2,747
(2,603)
2,839
440,374
(94,633)
345,741
(203,056)
3,333,164
203,056
(153,894)
(23,135)
(142)
616
(23,248)
(4,870)
(1,743)
1,407
535,397
(51,722)
483,675
(210,435)
$3,604,451
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
FOR THE YEARS ENDED AUGUST 31

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

Cash ﬂows from operating activities:
Net income including noncontrolling interests
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of deferred major repair costs
Income from equity investments
Distributions from equity investments
Noncash patronage dividends received
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment
(Gain) loss on investments
Deferred taxes
Other, net
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Receivables
Inventories
Derivative assets
Other current assets and other assets
Customer credit balances
Customer advance payments
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Derivative liabilities
Other liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash ﬂows from investing activities:
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposition of property, plant and equipment
Expenditures for major repairs
Investments
Investments redeemed
Proceeds from sale of investments
Joint venture distribution transaction, net
Changes in notes receivable
Business acquisitions
Acquisition of intangibles
Other investing activities, net
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash ﬂows from ﬁnancing activities:
Changes in notes payable
Long-term debt borrowings
Principal payments on long-term debt
Payments for bank fees on debt
Changes in checks and drafts outstanding
Distributions to noncontrolling interests
Preferred stock dividends paid
Retirements of equities
Cash patronage dividends paid
Other ﬁnancing activities, net
Net cash used in ﬁnancing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated ﬁnancial statements.
CHS Inc. and Subsidiaries
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2010

2009

2008

$ 535,397

$ 440,374

$ 874,882

202,922
18,532
(108,787)
89,689
(9,918)
(5,094)
(29,433)
39,507
1,597

196,350
24,999
(105,754)
80,403
(9,717)
(3,176)
56,305
43,976
2,466

181,263
29,146
(150,413)
110,013
(4,083)
(5,668)
(29,193)
26,011
719

(123,630)
(426,328)
(73,597)
(355,848)
149,228
114,032
221,776
(25,740)
(64,344)
149,961

692,540
895,882
198,163
186,217
47,946
(328,854)
(664,160)
32,525
(51,708)
1,734,777

(832,146)
(517,515)
(122,421)
(98,625)
113,501
275,386
827,997
96,382
30,152
805,388

(324,262)
10,139
(7,554)
(38,062)
119,331

(41,925)
(6,307)
(1,014)
65
(289,589)

(315,505)
10,769
(1,771)
(120,181)
39,787
41,822
850
123,307
(76,364)
(2,431)
9,273
(290,444)

(318,559)
9,336
(21,662)
(370,248)
43,046
122,075
(4,737)
(67,119)
(47,001)
(3,399)
(5,469)
(663,737)

15,217

(251,225)

(84,792)
(10,296)
47,280
(4,870)
(23,248)
(23,135)
(153,894)
952
(236,786)
(1,522)
(377,936)
772,599
$ 394,663

(118,864)
(1,584)
(119,301)
(21,139)
(20,024)
(49,652)
(227,610)
370
(809,029)
755
636,059
136,540
$ 772,599

(565,022)
600,000
(99,479)
(3,486)
61,110
(63,123)
(16,288)
(81,795)
(195,004)
(110)
(363,197)
374
(221,172)
357,712
$ 136,540

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

notes
NOTE ONE

Summary of Signiﬁcant
Accounting Policies
Organization

CHS Inc. (CHS or the Company) is an agricultural supply,
energy and grain-based foods cooperative company organized
for the mutual beneﬁt of its members. Members of the cooperative are located across the United States. The Company provides a wide variety of products and services, from initial
agricultural inputs such as fuels, farm supplies and agronomy
products, to agricultural outputs that include grains and oilseeds, grain and oilseed processing and food products. Revenues
are both domestic and international.

Basis of Presentation
and Reclassifications

The consolidated ﬁnancial statements include the accounts of
CHS and all of its wholly-owned and majority-owned subsidiaries and limited liability companies, which is primarily
National Cooperative Reﬁnery Association (NCRA), included
in the Energy segment. The effects of all signiﬁcant intercompany transactions have been eliminated.
The Company had various acquisitions during the three years
ended August 31, 2010, which have been accounted for using
the purchase method of accounting. Operating results of the
acquisitions are included in the consolidated ﬁnancial statements since the respective acquisition dates. The respective
purchase prices were allocated to the assets, liabilities and
identiﬁable intangible assets acquired based upon the estimated
fair values. The excess purchase prices over the estimated fair
values of the net assets acquired have been reported as goodwill.

identified and presented in the consolidated balance sheets within
equity, but separate from the parent’s equity; the amount of consolidated net earnings attributable to the parent and the noncontrolling interest to be clearly identified and presented on the
face of the consolidated statements of operations; and changes in a
parent’s ownership interest, while the parent retains its controlling financial interest in its subsidiary, to be accounted
for consistently.
The Company adopted ASC 860-10-65-1 at the beginning of fiscal
2010. In accordance with the accounting guidance, in order to
conform to the current period presentation, the Company made
reclassifications within its Consolidated Statements of Operations
to present the income attributable to noncontrolling interests as a
reconciling item between net income and net income attributable to
CHS Inc. Also, noncontrolling interests previously reported as
minority interests have been reclassified to a separate section in
equity on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. In addition, certain
other reclassifications to our previously reported financial information have been made to conform to the current period presentation.

Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents include short-term, highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less at the date
of acquisition.

Inventories

Grain, processed grain, oilseed and processed oilseed are stated
at net realizable values which approximate market values. All
other inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Costs
for inventories produced or modiﬁed by the Company through a
manufacturing process include ﬁxed and variable production
and raw material costs, and in-bound freight costs for raw

In December 2007, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) issued Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 860-10-

materials. Costs for inventories purchased for resale include

65-1, “Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial State-

the Company’s points of sale. The costs of certain energy inven-

ments, an Amendment of Accounting Research Bulletin (ARB)
No. 51.” ASC 860-10-65-1 establishes accounting and reporting

tories (wholesale reﬁned products, crude oil and asphalt) are

standards that require the following: the ownership interest in

inventories of non-grain products purchased for resale are val-

subsidiaries held by parties other than the parent to be clearly

ued on the ﬁrst-in, ﬁrst-out (FIFO) and average cost methods.

the cost of products and freight incurred to place the products at

determined on the last-in, ﬁrst-out (LIFO) method; all other
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NOTE ONE

As of August 31, 2010 and 2009, the gross fair values of the

Summary of Signiﬁcant
Accounting Policies, continued

Company’s derivative assets and liabilities not designated as
hedging instruments were as follows:
2010

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

Derivative Assets:
Commodity and freight derivatives

Derivative Financial Instruments
and Hedging Activities

The Company’s derivative instruments primarily consist of
commodity and freight futures and forward contracts and, to
a minor degree, may include foreign currency and interest rate

Derivative Liabilities:
Commodity and freight derivatives
Foreign exchange derivatives
Interest rate derivatives

swap contracts. These contracts are economic hedges of price
risk, but are not designated or accounted for as hedging instruments for accounting purposes, with the exception of some
derivative instruments included in the Energy segment. Derivative instruments are recorded on the Company’s Consolidated
Balance Sheets at fair values as discussed in Note 12, Fair

$461,580

$296,416

$495,569
222
1,227
$497,018

$426,281
4,911
$431,192

As of August 31, 2010, the gross fair values of the Company’s
derivative liabilities designated as cash ﬂow hedging instruments were as follows:
2010

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

Value Measurements.

Derivative Liabilities:
Commodity and freight derivatives

Beginning in the third quarter of ﬁscal 2010, certain ﬁnancial

The following table sets forth the pretax gains (losses) on deriv-

contracts within the Energy segment were entered into for the

atives as hedging instruments that have been included in the

spread between heavy and light crude oil purchase prices, and

Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operation during ﬁscal
2010. The amended disclosure requirements of ASC Topic 815

have been designated and accounted for as hedging instruments
(cash ﬂow hedges). The unrealized gains or losses of these contracts are deferred to accumulated other comprehensive loss in
the equity section of the Consolidated Balance Sheet and will be
included in earnings upon settlement.

futures and options contracts and certain over-the-counter
(OTC) contracts which are recorded on a net basis in the Com-

and as a result, comparative year-to-date information is not
available for ﬁscal year 2009 or 2008.
Commodity and freight
derivatives
Foreign exchange
derivatives
Interest rate derivatives

LOCATION OF GAIN (LOSS)

fair value amounts recognized for derivative instruments against
the right to reclaim cash collateral or the obligation to return
cash collateral under the same master netting arrangement, the
Company has not elected to net its margin deposits.

$95,876

Cost of goods sold
Interest, net

(675)
(430)
$94,771

ing outstanding contracts:

Grain and oilseed —
bushels

2010
PURCHASE
SALES
CONTRACTS CONTRACTS

of Operations for derivatives designated as cash ﬂow hedging
instruments during the year ended August 31, 2010, since there
were no settlements. The contracts were entered into during
net of taxes, expected to be included in earnings during the next
12 months. As of August 31, 2010, the unrealized losses
deferred to accumulated other comprehensive loss were
$2.4 million, net of tax beneﬁt of $1.5 million.

2009
PURCHASE
CONTRACTS

No gains or losses were recorded in the Consolidated Statement

ﬁscal 2010 and expire in ﬁscal 2011, with a $2.4 million loss,

As of August 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company had the follow-

(UNITS IN
THOUSANDS)

2010

Cost of goods sold

pany’s Consolidated Balance Sheets. Although accounting standards permit a party to a master netting arrangement to offset

$3,959

were ﬁrst implemented for the period ended February 28, 2009,

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

The Company has netting arrangements for its exchange traded
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2009

SALES
CONTRACTS

Commodity and Freight Contracts:

When the Company enters into a commodity or freight purchase

747,334

1,039,363

591,639

715,914

Energy products — barrels

8,633

10,156

8,879

12,456

Crop nutrients — tons

1,257

1,215

933

1,016

or sales commitment, it incurs risks related to price change and
performance (including delivery, quality, quantity and shipment

Ocean and barge freight —
metric tons

1,385

279

3,493

3,316

value of positions held, consisting of inventory and purchase
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period). The Company is exposed to risk of loss in the market

contracts at a ﬁxed or partially ﬁxed price in the event market

grain merchandised, not from hedging transactions. At any one

prices decrease. The Company is also exposed to risk of loss on
ﬁxed or partially ﬁxed price sales contracts in the event market

time, inventory and purchase contracts for delivery to the Company may be substantial. The Company has risk management

prices increase.

policies and procedures that include net position limits. These

The Company’s commodity contracts primarily relate to grain,
oilseed, energy and fertilizer commodities. The Company’s
freight contracts primarily relate to rail, barge and ocean freight
transactions. The Company’s use of commodity and freight
contracts reduces the effects of price volatility, thereby protecting against adverse short-term price movements, while limiting
the beneﬁts of short-term price movements. To reduce the price
change risks associated with holding ﬁxed price commitments,
the Company generally takes opposite and offsetting positions
by entering into commodity futures contracts or options, to the
extent practical, in order to arrive at a net commodity position
within the formal position limits it has established and deemed
prudent for each commodity. These contracts are purchased and
sold through regulated commodity futures exchanges for grain,
and regulated mercantile exchanges for reﬁned products and
crude oil. The Company also uses OTC instruments to hedge its
exposure on ﬂat price ﬂuctuations. The price risk the Company
encounters for crude oil and most of the grain and oilseed
volumes it handles can be hedged. Price risk associated with
fertilizer and certain grains cannot be hedged because there are
no futures for these commodities and, as a result, risk is managed through the use of forward sales contracts and other pricing
arrangements and, to some extent, cross-commodity futures
hedging. Fertilizer and propane contracts are accounted for as
normal purchase and normal sales transactions. The Company
expects all normal purchase and normal sales transactions to
result in physical settlement.
When a futures contract is entered into, an initial margin deposit
must be sent to the applicable exchange or broker. These margin
deposits are included in other current assets in the Company’s
Consolidated Balance Sheets. The amount of the deposit is set by
the exchange and varies by commodity. If the market price of a
short futures contract increases, then an additional maintenance margin deposit would be required. Similarly, if the price
of a long futures contract decreases, a maintenance margin
deposit would be required and sent to the applicable exchange.
Subsequent price changes could require additional maintenance margins or could result in the return of maintenance margins.

limits are deﬁned for each commodity and include both trader
and management limits. This policy and computerized procedures in the Company’s grain marketing operations require a
review by operations management when any trader is outside of
position limits and also a review by the Company’s senior
management if operating areas are outside of position limits.
A similar process is used in the Company’s energy and wholesale crop nutrients operations. The position limits are reviewed,
at least annually, with the Company’s management and the
Board of Directors. The Company monitors current market
conditions and may expand or reduce its net position limits or
procedures in response to changes in conditions. In addition, all
purchase and sales contracts are subject to credit approvals and
appropriate terms and conditions.
Hedging arrangements do not protect against nonperformance
by counterparties to contracts. The Company primarily uses
exchange traded instruments which minimize its counterparty
exposure. The Company evaluates exposure by reviewing contracts and adjusting the values to reﬂect potential nonperformance. Risk of nonperformance by counterparties includes the
inability to perform because of the counterparty’s ﬁnancial condition and also the risk that the counterparty will refuse to
perform on a contract during periods of price ﬂuctuations where
contract prices are signiﬁcantly different than current market
prices. The Company manages its risks by entering into ﬁxed
price purchase and sales contracts with preapproved producers
and by establishing appropriate limits for individual suppliers.
Fixed price contracts are entered into with customers of acceptable creditworthiness, as internally evaluated. Historically, the
Company has not experienced signiﬁcant events of nonperformance on open contracts. Accordingly, the Company only
adjusts the estimated fair values of speciﬁcally identiﬁed contracts for nonperformance. Although the Company has established policies and procedures, it makes no assurances that
historical nonperformance experience will carry forward to
future periods.

Interest Rate Contracts:

The Company uses fixed and floating rate debt to lessen the

The Company’s policy is to primarily maintain hedged positions

effects of interest rate fluctuations on interest expense. Short-term
debt used to finance inventories and receivables is represented by

in grain and oilseed. The Company’s proﬁtability from opera-

notes payable with maturities of 30 days or less, so that the

tions is primarily derived from margins on products sold and

Company’s blended interest rate for all such notes approximates
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NOTE ONE

Summary of Signiﬁcant
Accounting Policies, continued
current market rates. During fiscal 2009, the Company entered
into an interest rate swap with a notional amount of
$150.0 million, expiring in September 2010, to lock in the interest
rate for $150.0 million of its revolving line of credit. Cofina
Financial, LLC (Cofina Financial) has interest rate swaps that
lock the variable interest rates of the underlying loans with a
combined notional amount of $16.8 million expiring at various
times through fiscal 2018, with $0.2 million of the notional
amount expiring during fiscal 2011 and the balance expiring
during or after fiscal 2013. As of August 31, 2010, all of the
Company’s interest rate swaps, including those of Cofina Financial, do not qualify for hedge accounting due to ineffectiveness
caused by repayment of borrowings or differences in underlying
terms. As a result of the swaps not qualifying for hedge accounting, changes in fair value are recorded in earnings within interest,
net on the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Foreign Exchange Contracts:

The Company conducts essentially all of its business in U.S. dollars, except for grain marketing operations primarily in Brazil
and Switzerland, and purchases of products from Canada. The
Company had minimal risk regarding foreign currency ﬂuctuations during ﬁscal 2010 and in prior years, as substantially all
international sales were denominated in U.S. dollars. From time
to time, the Company enters into foreign currency futures contracts to mitigate currency ﬂuctuations. Foreign currency ﬂuctuations do, however, impact the ability of foreign buyers to
purchase U.S. agricultural products and the competitiveness of
U.S. agricultural products compared to the same products
offered by alternative sources of world supply. As of August 31,
2010, the Company had $0.2 million in foreign currency contracts outstanding.

Investments
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unrealized amounts included as a component of accumulated
other comprehensive income (loss). Investments in debt and
equity instruments are carried at amounts that approximate
fair values. Investments in joint ventures and cooperatives have
no quoted market prices.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization are provided on the straight-line method by charges to
operations at rates based upon the expected useful lives of
individual or groups of assets (primarily 15 to 40 years for land
improvements and buildings and 3 to 20 years for machinery,
equipment, ofﬁce and other). The cost and related accumulated
depreciation and amortization of assets sold or otherwise disposed of are removed from the related accounts and resulting
gains or losses are reﬂected in operations. Expenditures for
maintenance and repairs and minor renewals are expensed,
while costs of major renewals and betterments are capitalized.
The Company reviews property, plant and equipment and other
long-lived assets in order to assess recoverability based on projected income and related cash ﬂows on an undiscounted basis
when triggering events occur. Should the sum of the expected
future net cash ﬂows be less than the carrying value, an impairment loss would be recognized. An impairment loss would be
measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the
asset exceeds the fair value of the asset.
The Company has asset retirement obligations with respect to
certain of its reﬁneries and related assets due to various legal
obligations to clean and/or dispose of various component parts at
the time they are retired. However, these assets can be used for
extended and indeterminate periods of time, as long as they are
properly maintained and/or upgraded. It is the Company’s practice and current intent to maintain its reﬁneries and related
assets and to continue making improvements to those assets
based on technological advances. As a result, the Company

Joint ventures and other investments, in which the Company
has signiﬁcant ownership and inﬂuence, but not control, are

believes that its reﬁneries and related assets have indeterminate
lives for purposes of estimating asset retirement obligations

accounted for in the consolidated ﬁnancial statements using the

because dates or ranges of dates upon which the Company

equity method of accounting. Investments in other cooperatives
are stated at cost, plus patronage dividends received in the form

would retire a reﬁnery and related assets cannot reasonably
be estimated at this time. When a date or range of dates can

of capital stock and other equities. Patronage dividends are

reasonably be estimated for the retirement of any component

recorded as a reduction to cost of goods sold at the time qualiﬁed
written notices of allocation are received. Investments in other

part of a reﬁnery or related asset, the Company will estimate the
cost of performing the retirement activities and record a liability

debt and equity securities are considered available for sale

for the fair value of that cost using established present

ﬁnancial instruments and are stated at fair value, with

value techniques.
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Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

of environmental costs are based on current available facts, exist-

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price of an acquired
entity over the amounts assigned to assets acquired and liabilities

ing technology, undiscounted site-specific costs and currently
enacted laws and regulations. Recoveries, if any, are recorded

assumed. Goodwill and other intangible assets are reviewed for

in the period in which recovery is received. Liabilities are mon-

impairment annually or more frequently if impairment conditions
arise, and those that are impaired are written down to fair value.

itored and adjusted as new facts or changes in law or technology
occur. Environmental expenditures are capitalized when such

Other intangible assets consist primarily of customer lists, trade-

costs provide future economic benefits.

marks and agreements not to compete. Intangible assets subject to
amortization are expensed over their respective useful lives (ranging from 2 to 30 years). The Company has no material intangible

Income Taxes

assets with indefinite useful lives.

The Company is a nonexempt agricultural cooperative and ﬁles
a consolidated federal income tax return with its 80% or more

In the Company’s Energy segment, major maintenance activities
(turnarounds) at the two refineries are accounted for under the

from nonpatronage sources and undistributed patronagesourced income. Income tax expense is primarily the current

deferral method. Turnarounds are the scheduled and required
shutdowns of refinery processing units. The costs related to the
significant overhaul and refurbishment activities include materials
and direct labor costs. The costs of turnarounds are deferred when
incurred and amortized on a straight-line basis over the period of
time estimated to lapse until the next turnaround occurs, which is
generally 2-3 years. The amortization expense related to turnaround costs are included in cost of goods sold in the Consolidated
Statements of Operations. The selection of the deferral method, as
opposed to expensing the turnaround costs when incurred, results
in deferring recognition of the turnaround expenditures. The deferral method also results in the classification of the related cash
outflows as investing activities in the Consolidated Statements of
Cash Flows, whereas expensing these costs as incurred, would
result in classifying the cash outflows as operating activities.

Revenue Recognition

The Company provides a wide variety of products and services,
from production agricultural inputs such as fuels, farm supplies
and crop nutrients, to agricultural outputs that include grain and

owned subsidiaries. The Company is subject to tax on income

tax payable for the period and the change during the period in
certain deferred tax assets and liabilities. Deferred income taxes
reﬂect the impact of temporary differences between the amounts
of assets and liabilities recognized for ﬁnancial reporting purposes and such amounts recognized for federal and state income
tax purposes, based on enacted tax laws and statutory tax rates
applicable to the periods in which the differences are expected to
affect taxable income. Valuation allowances are established,
when necessary, to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount
expected to be realized. Valuation allowances have been established primarily for capital loss carryforwards.

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income primarily includes net income attributable to CHS Inc. and actuarial changes in pension and other
postretirement plans. Total comprehensive income is reﬂected
in the Consolidated Statements of Equities and Comprehensive Income.

Use of Estimates

oilseed, processed grains and oilseeds and food products. Grain
and oilseed sales are recorded after the commodity has been

The preparation of ﬁnancial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States

delivered to its destination and ﬁnal weights, grades and settle-

of America requires management to make estimates and

ment prices have been agreed upon. All other sales are recognized upon transfer of title, which could occur upon either

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and lia-

shipment or receipt by the customer, depending upon the terms
of the transaction. Amounts billed to a customer as part of a sales
transaction related to shipping and handling are included in
revenues. Service revenues are recorded only after such services have been rendered.

Environmental Expenditures

bilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the ﬁnancial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2009, the FASB issued ASC 860-10-65-3, “Accounting

Liabilities, including legal costs, related to remediation of con-

for Transfers of Financial Assets,” which requires additional
disclosures concerning a transferor’s continuing involvement

taminated properties are recognized when the related costs are

with transferred financial assets. ASC 860-10-65-3 eliminates

considered probable and can be reasonably estimated. Estimates

the concept of a “qualifying special-purpose entity” and changes

2010 CHS ANNUAL REPORT

37

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE ONE

Summary of Signiﬁcant
Accounting Policies, continued
the requirements for derecognizing financial assets. The guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15,
2009. We are currently evaluating the impact that the adoption
will have on our consolidated financial statements in fiscal 2011.
In June 2009, the FASB issued ASC 860-10-65-2, “Amendments
to FASB Interpretation No. 46(R),” which requires an enterprise to
conduct a qualitative analysis for the purpose of determining
whether, based on its variable interests, it also has a controlling

entity’s portfolio of ﬁnancing receivables, how that risk is analyzed, and the changes and reasons for those changes in the
allowance for credit losses. It requires an entity to provide a
greater level of disaggregated information about the credit quality of its ﬁnancing receivables and its allowance for credit losses.
ASU 2010-20 will only impact disclosures. Disclosures related
to information as of the end of a reporting period are effective for
interim and annual reporting periods ending on or after
December 15, 2010. Disclosures regarding activities that occur
during a reporting period are effective for interim and annual
reporting periods beginning on or after December 15, 2010.

interest in a variable interest entity. ASC 860-10-65-2 clarifies that
the determination of whether a company is required to consolidate

NOTE TWO

an entity is based on, among other things, an entity’s purpose and

Receivables as of August 31, 2010 and 2009 are as follows:

design and a company’s ability to direct the activities of the entity
that most significantly impact the entity’s economic performance.
ASC 860-10-65-2 requires an ongoing reassessment of whether a
company is the primary beneficiary of a variable interest entity. It
also requires additional disclosures about a company’s involvement
in variable interest entities and any significant changes in risk
exposure due to that involvement. ASC 860-10-65-2 is effective for
fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2009. We are currently
evaluating the impact that the adoption will have on our consolidated financial statements in fiscal 2011.
In January 2010, the FASB issued Accounting Standards
Update (ASU) No. 2010-06, “Improving Disclosures about Fair
Value Measurements,” which amends existing disclosure
requirements under ASC 820. ASU No. 2010-06 requires
new disclosures for signiﬁcant transfers between Levels 1 and
2 in the fair value hierarchy and separate disclosures for purchases, sales, issuances, and settlements in the reconciliation of
activity for Level 3 fair value measurements. This ASU also
clariﬁes the existing fair value disclosures regarding the level of
disaggregation and the valuation techniques and inputs used to
measure fair value. ASU No. 2010-06 will only impact disclosures and is effective for interim and annual reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2009, except for the disclosures
on purchases, sales, issuances and settlements in the roll-forward of activity for Level 3 fair value measurements. Those
disclosures are effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2010.
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disclosures regarding the nature of credit risk inherent in an

Receivables
(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

Trade accounts receivable
Coﬁna Financial notes receivable
Other
Less allowances and reserves

2010

$1,543,530
340,303
123,770
2,007,603
99,535
$1,908,068

2009

$1,482,921
254,419
189,434
1,926,774
99,025
$1,827,749

Trade accounts receivable are initially recorded at a selling
price, which approximates fair value, upon the sale of goods
or services to customers. Coﬁna Financial notes receivable are
reported at their outstanding principle balances as the Company
has the ability and intent to hold these notes to maturity.

NOTE THREE

Inventories

Inventories as of August 31, 2010 and 2009 are as follows:
(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

Grain and oilseed
Energy
Crop nutrients
Feed and farm supplies
Processed grain and oilseed
Other

2010

$ 983,846
515,930
135,526
242,482
74,064
9,528
$1,961,376

2009

$ 638,622
496,114
114,832
198,440
69,344
8,928
$1,526,280

As of August 31, 2010, the Company valued approximately 12%

In July 2010, the FASB issued ASU No. 2010-20, “Disclosures

of inventories, primarily crude oil and refined fuels within the
Energy segment, using the lower of cost, determined on the LIFO

about the Credit Quality of Financing Receivables and the

method, or market (17% as of August 31, 2009). If the FIFO

Allowance for Credit Losses.”ASU 2010-20 requires enhanced

method of accounting had been used, inventories would have
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been higher than the reported amount by $345.4 million and
$311.4 million at August 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. During
2010 and 2009, energy inventory quantities were reduced. In
2010, the reduction resulted in liquidation of LIFO inventory
quantities carried at lower costs prevailing in prior years as
compared with the cost of 2010 purchases, the effect of which
decreased cost of goods sold by approximately $5.7 million. In
2009, the reduction resulted in liquidation of LIFO inventory
quantities carried at higher costs prevailing in prior years as
compared with the cost of 2009 purchases, the effect of which
increased cost of goods sold by approximately $5.3 million.

2009

$441,406
464,356
141,844
303,665

2010

2009

Net sales
$1,954,289
Gross proﬁt
259,388
Net earnings
95,480
Earnings attributable to
CHS Inc.
47,740

$2,055,768
269,269
125,174

$2,120,332
162,756
31,090

62,587

15,545

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

2008

(Multigrain), for a 37.5% equity position in a Brazil-based grain
handling and merchandising company, Multigrain S.A., an

Investments

Investments as of August 31, 2010 and 2009 are as follows:
Joint ventures:
Ventura Foods, LLC
Multigrain AG
Horizon Milling, LLC
TEMCO, LLC
Horizon Milling G.P.
United Country Brands, LLC
(Agriliance LLC)
Cooperatives:
Land O’Lakes, Inc.
Ag Processing Inc.
CoBank, ACB
Other

$512,554
459,346
166,408
308,795

During ﬁscal 2007, the Company invested in Multigrain AG

NOTE FOUR

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

2010

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

2010

2009

$262,550
148,528
69,873
29,128
20,166

$245,525
141,179
56,999
27,181
19,137

18,357

80,436

48,854
18,245
15,704
87,987
$719,392

45,747
18,594
19,891
73,236
$727,925

agricultural commodities business headquartered in Sao Paulo,
Brazil. This venture, included in the Company’s Ag Business
segment, includes grain storage, export facilities and grain production and builds on the Company’s South American soybean
origination. During the year ended August 31, 2008, the Company increased its equity position through a purchase from an
existing equity holder for $10.0 million, and also invested an
additional $30.3 million which was used by Multigrain to invest
in a joint venture that acquired production farmland and related
operations. During the year ended August 31, 2009, the Company invested $76.3 million for Multigrain’s increased capital
needs resulting from expansion of its operations, and during the
year ended August 31, 2010, the Company invested an additional $24.0 million. The Company’s current ownership interest
is approximately 45%.
Agriliance LLC (Agriliance) is owned and governed by United

The Company has a 50% interest in Ventura Foods, LLC, (Ventura
Foods), a joint venture which produces and distributes primarily

Country Brands, LLC (50%) and Land O’Lakes, Inc. (Land
O’Lakes) (50%). United Country Brands, LLC is 100% owned by

vegetable oil-based products, and is included in the Company’s

CHS. The Company accounts for its Agriliance investment using

Processing segment. During the years ended August 31, 2009 and

the equity method of accounting within the Ag Business segment.
Prior to September 1, 2007, Agriliance was a wholesale and

2008, the Company made capital contributions to Ventura Foods of
$35.0 million and $20.0 million, respectively. The Company
accounts for Ventura Foods as an equity method investment, and
as of August 31, 2010, its carrying value of Ventura Foods exceeded
its share of their equity by $14.2 million, of which $1.3 million is
being amortized with a remaining life of approximately two years.
The remaining basis difference represents equity method goodwill.
The following provides summarized unaudited financial informa-

retail crop nutrients and crop protection products company. In
September 2007, Agriliance distributed the assets of the crop
nutrients business to the Company, and the assets of the crop
protection business to Land O’Lakes. Due to the Company’s 50%
ownership interest in Agriliance and the 50% ownership interest
of Land O’Lakes, each company was entitled to receive 50% of
the distributions from Agriliance. Given the different prelimi-

tion for Ventura Foods balance sheets as of August 31, 2010 and

nary values assigned to the assets of the crop nutrients and the
crop protection businesses of Agriliance, at the closing of the

2009, and statements of operations for the twelve months ended

distribution transactions Land O’Lakes owed the Company

August 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008:

$133.5 million. Land O’Lakes paid the Company $32.6 million
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NOTE FOUR

On August 31, 2007, the Company held a minority ownership

Investments, continued

interest in US BioEnergy Corporation (US BioEnergy), an ethanol production company, which was reﬂected in the Processing

in cash, and in order to maintain equal capital accounts in

segment. During the ﬁrst quarter of ﬁscal 2008, the Company

Agriliance, they also paid down certain portions of Agriliance’s
debt on the Company’s behalf in the amount of $100.9 million.

purchased additional shares of US BioEnergy common stock for
$6.5 million. Through March 31, 2008, the Company was rec-

Values of the distributed assets were ﬁnalized after the closing,

ognizing its share of the earnings of US BioEnergy using the

and in October 2007, the Company made a true-up payment to

equity method of accounting. Effective April 1, 2008, US

Land O’Lakes in the amount of $45.7 million, plus interest.
During ﬁscal 2009, the ﬁnal true-up amount was determined,

BioEnergy and VeraSun Energy Corporation (VeraSun) completed a merger, and the Company’s ownership interest in the

and the Company received $0.9 million from Land O’Lakes.

combined entity was reduced to approximately 8%, compared to

The distribution of assets the Company received from Agriliance

approximately 20% interest in US BioEnergy prior to the
merger. As a result of the Company’s change in ownership

for the crop nutrients business had a book value of $248.2 million.
The Company recorded 50% of the value of the net assets received
at book value due to the Company’s ownership interest in those
assets when they were held by Agriliance, and 50% of the value of
the net assets at fair value using the purchase method

no longer accounted for VeraSun using the equity method. Due
to the continued decline of the ethanol industry and other considerations, the Company determined that an impairment of its

of accounting.

VeraSun investment was necessary during ﬁscal 2008, and as a
result, based on VeraSun’s market value of $5.76 per share on

During the year ended August 31, 2008, the Company’s net

August 29, 2008, an impairment charge of $71.7 million was

contribution to Agriliance was $235.0 million which supported
its working capital requirements for ongoing operations, with
Land O’Lakes making equal contributions to Agriliance. During
the years ended August 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company
received $105.0 million and $25.0 million of distributions from
Agriliance as a return of capital, respectively. The distributions
received during the year ended August 31, 2010, were primarily
for proceeds Agriliance received from the sale of many of its
retail facilities. The Company recorded a $28.4 million gain
during ﬁscal 2010 related to the continuing sales of Agriliance
retail facilities. Agriliance continues to exist as a 50-50 joint
venture as the company winds down its business activity and

recorded in (gain) loss on investments. Subsequent to August 31,
2008, the market value of VeraSun’s stock price continued to
decline, and on October 31, 2008, VeraSun ﬁled for relief under
Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code. Consequently, the
Company’s management determined an additional impairment
was necessary based on VeraSun’s market value of $0.28 per
share on November 3, 2008, and recorded an impairment
charge of $70.7 million, during its ﬁrst quarter of ﬁscal 2009.
Due to the outcome of the VeraSun bankruptcy, during the third
quarter of ﬁscal 2009, the Company wrote off the remaining
investment of $3.6 million. The impairments did not affect the
Company’s cash ﬂows and did not have a bearing upon its

primarily holds long-term liabilities.

compliance with any covenants under its credit facilities.

A summary of combined ﬁnancial information for the
Company’s major equity investments, excluding Ventura Foods

Coﬁna Financial, a ﬁnance company formed in ﬁscal 2005,

is as follows:
2010

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

$1,254,966
881,998
765,393
491,643

2009

$1,167,072
801,867
928,070
190,167

2010

2009

Net sales
$7,212,848
Gross proﬁt
356,708
Net earnings
150,798
Earnings attributable to
CHS Inc.
50,731

$6,748,412
306,158
128,807

$9,732,635
521,228
313,176

45,728

117,758

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)
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makes seasonal and term loans to member cooperatives and
businesses and to individual producers of agricultural products.
Through August 31, 2008, the Company accounted for its 49%
ownership interest in Coﬁna Financial, within Corporate and
Other, using the equity method of accounting. On September 1,
2008, Coﬁna became a wholly-owned subsidiary when the
Company purchased the remaining 51% ownership interest
for $53.3 million. The purchase price included cash of $48.5 million and the assumption of certain liabilities of $4.8 million.
During the year ended August 31, 2009, the Company sold its
available-for-sale investment of common stock in the New York
Mercantile Exchange (NYMEX Holdings) for proceeds of
$16.1 million and recorded a pretax gain of $15.7 million.

The Company also received proceeds of $25.5 million from the
sale of a Canadian agronomy investment during the year ended
August 31, 2009, and recorded a gain of $2.8 million.
After a ﬁscal 2005 initial public offering (IPO) transaction for
CF Industries Inc., CHS held an ownership interest in CF
Industries Holdings, Inc. (the post-IPO name) of approximately
3.9% or 2,150,396 shares. During the year ended August 31,
2007, CHS sold 540,000 shares of the stock for proceeds of
$10.9 million, and recorded a pretax gain of $5.3 million. During
the year ended August 31, 2008, CHS sold all of its remaining
1,610,396 shares of stock for proceeds of $108.3 million and
recorded a pretax gain of $91.7 million.
Various agreements with other owners of investee companies
and a majority-owned subsidiary set out parameters whereby
CHS may buy and sell additional interests in those companies,
upon the occurrence of certain events, at fair values determinable as set forth in the speciﬁc agreements.

NOTE SIX

Other Assets

Other assets as of August 31, 2010 and 2009 are as follows:
2010

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

Goodwill
Customer lists, less accumulated
amortization of $18,666 and $12,336,
respectively
Non-compete covenants, less accumulated
amortization of $4,701 and $3,173,
respectively
Trademarks and other intangible assets,
less accumulated amortization of
$16,489 and $17,291, respectively
Notes receivable
Long-term receivable
Prepaid pension and other beneﬁts
Capitalized major maintenance
Other

2009

$ 23,038

$ 17,346

19,392

22,689

4,950

6,785

17,794
152,140
63,072
57,729
19,097
19,984
$377,196

20,862
133,243
52,934
30,075
13,038
$296,972

During the years ended August 31, 2010 and 2009, the Com-

NOTE FIVE

pany had acquisitions in its Ag Business segment which

A summary of property, plant and equipment as of August 31,
2010 and 2009 is as follows:

2008, the Company purchased the remaining 51% ownership

Property, Plant and Equipment
(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

Land and land improvements
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Ofﬁce and other
Construction in progress
Less accumulated depreciation and
amortization

2010

2009

$ 118,337
499,346
3,072,866
93,099
359,933
4,143,581

$ 110,635
497,956
2,879,984
94,429
243,929
3,826,933

1,890,510
$2,253,071

1,727,608
$2,099,325

Depreciation expense for the years ended August 31, 2010,
2009 and 2008, was $187.5 million, $180.9 million and
$162.9 million, respectively.
The Company is leasing certain of its wheat milling facilities
and related equipment to Horizon Milling, LLC under an operating lease agreement. The net book value of the leased milling

resulted in $6.5 million and $8.4 million of goodwill, respectively, reﬂecting the purchase price allocations. On September 1,
interest of Coﬁna Financial, resulting in $6.9 million of goodwill. Also, during the years ended August 31, 2010 and 2009,
dispositions in the Company’s Energy and Ag Business segments resulted in decreases in goodwill of $0.8 million and
$1.7 million, respectively.
Intangible assets acquired as part of business acquisitions during the years ended August 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, totaled
$1.4 million, $10.6 million and $18.6 million, respectively, and
during ﬁscal 2010 and 2009, were from acquisitions in our Ag
Business segment. During ﬁscal 2008, the Company purchased
a soy-based food ingredients business included in the Processing
segment and a distillers dried grain business included in the Ag
Business segment, acquired and paid for in ﬁscal 2008 and
2007. Various other cash acquisitions of intangibles totaled
$1.0 million, $2.4 million and $3.4 million during the years
ended August 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
Intangible assets amortization expense for the years ended

assets at August 31, 2010 and 2009 was $59.3 million and

August 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, was $11.4 million, $12.2 mil-

$65.3 million, respectively, net of accumulated depreciation of
$69.7 million and $65.1 million, respectively.

lion and $15.9 million, respectively. The estimated amortization
expense related to intangible assets subject to amortization for
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NOTE SIX

Other Assets,

The capitalized major maintenance activity is as follows:

continued

the next ﬁve years will approximate $10.4 million for each of the
ﬁrst two years, $5.7 million for the next year, and $2.8 million
for each of the following two years.

(DOLLARS IN
THOUSANDS)

2010
2009
2008

BALANCE AT
BEGINNING
COST
BALANCE AT
OF YEAR DEFERRED AMORTIZATION WRITE-OFFS END OF YEAR

$30,075 $ 7,554
53,303
1,771
60,787 21,662

$(18,532)
(24,999)
(29,146)

$19,097
30,075
53,303

NOTE SEVEN

Notes Payable and Long-Term Debt

Notes payable and long-term debt as of August 31, 2010 and 2009 consisted of the following:
(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

Notes payable(a)(j)
Coﬁna Financial notes payable(k)
Long-term debt:
Revolving term loans from cooperative and other banks, payable in equal installments
beginning in 2013 through 2018(b)(j)
Private placement, payable in equal installments beginning in 2014 through 2018(c)(j)
Private placement, payable in equal installments through 2013(d)(j)
Private placement, payable in installments through 2018(e)(j)
Private placement, payable in equal installments beginning in 2011 through 2015(f)(j)
Private placement, payable in equal installments through 2011(g)(j)
Private placement, payable in its entirety in 2010(h)(j)
Private placement, payable in its entirety in 2011(h)(j)
Private placement, payable in equal installments beginning in 2014 through 2018(h)(j)
Industrial revenue bonds, payable in its entirety in 2011
Other notes and contracts(i)
Total long-term debt
Less current portion
Long-term portion

INTEREST RATES AT
AUGUST 31, 2010

2010

$ 29,776
232,314
$262,090

$

5.59%
6.18%
6.81%
4.96% to 5.60%
5.25%
7.43% to 7.90%
4.08%
4.39%
5.78%
5.23%
1.89% to 12.17%

$150,000
400,000
112,500
104,231
125,000
11,428

$ 150,000
400,000
150,000
121,923
125,000
22,857
15,000
15,000
50,000
3,925
18,248
1,071,953
83,492
$ 988,461

15,000
50,000
3,925
14,157
986,241
112,503
$873,738
2010

Weighted-average interest rates at August 31:
Notes payable
Coﬁna Financial notes payable
Long-term debt

2009

1.00% to 8.50%
0.85% to 2.29%

2.24%
1.75%
5.92%

19,183
227,689
$ 246,872

2009

2.84%
1.71%
5.93%

(a) The Company ﬁnances its working capital needs through short-term lines of credit with a syndication of domestic and international banks.
One of these revolving lines of credit was a ﬁve-year $1.3 billion committed facility, with no amount outstanding on August 31, 2009. In
June 2010, the Company amended this facility and reduced the committed amount from $1.3 billion to $700 million, with the May 2011
maturity date remaining the same, and no amount outstanding on August 31, 2010. Also in June 2010, the Company entered into a new
ﬁve-year $900 million committed facility that expires in June 2015, which had no amount outstanding on August 31, 2010. The Company
previously had a $300 million 364-day revolving line of credit that expired in February 2010, which had no amount outstanding on
August 31, 2009. In addition to these short-term lines of credit, the Company has a one-year committed credit facility dedicated to NCRA
expiring in December 2010, with a syndication of banks in the amount of $15.0 million, with no amounts outstanding on August 31, 2010
and 2009. Our wholly-owned subsidiaries, CHS Europe S.A. and CHS do Brasil Ltda., have uncommitted lines of credit to ﬁnance their
normal trade grain transactions, of which $27.1 million and $15.7 million were outstanding on August 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively,
and were collateralized by certain inventories and receivables. The Company has two commercial paper programs totaling up to
$125.0 million with two banks participating in the ﬁve-year revolving credit facility. The commercial paper programs do not increase the
committed borrowing capacity in that the Company is required to have at least an equal amount of undrawn capacity available on the ﬁveyear revolving facility as to the amount of commercial paper issued. On August 31, 2010 and 2009, there was no commercial paper
outstanding. Miscellaneous short-term notes payable totaled $2.7 million and $3.5 million on August 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
(b) In December 2007, the Company established a 10-year long-term credit agreement through a syndication of cooperative banks in the
amount of $150.0 million.
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(c) In October 2007, the Company entered into a private placement with several insurance companies for long-term debt in the amount
of $400.0 million.
(d) In June 1998, the Company entered into a private placement with several insurance companies for long-term debt in the amount
of $225.0 million.
(e) In October 2002, the Company entered into a private placement with several insurance companies for long-term debt in the amount
of $175.0 million.
(f) In September 2004, the Company entered into a private placement with several insurance companies for long-term debt in the amount
of $125.0 million.
(g) In January 2001, the Company entered into a note purchase and private shelf agreement with Prudential Insurance Company. A longterm note was issued for $25.0 million and a subsequent note for $55.0 million was issued in March 2001.
(h) In March 2004, the Company entered into a note purchase and private shelf agreement with Prudential Capital Group. In April 2004, two
long-term notes were issued for $15.0 million each. In April 2007, the agreement was amended with Prudential Investment Management,
Inc. and several other participating insurance companies to expand the uncommitted facility from $70.0 million to $150.0 million. In
February 2008, the Company borrowed $50.0 million under the shelf arrangement.
(i) Other notes and contracts payable of $9.1 million are collateralized by property, plant and equipment, with a cost of $24.4 million, less
accumulated depreciation of $10.0 million on August 31, 2010.
(j) The debt is unsecured; however, restrictive covenants under various agreements have requirements for maintenance of minimum
working capital levels and other ﬁnancial ratios.
(k) Coﬁna Funding, LLC (Coﬁna Funding), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Coﬁna Financial, has available credit totaling $200.0 million as of
August 31, 2010, under note purchase agreements with various purchasers, through the issuance of short-term notes payable. Coﬁna
Financial sells eligible commercial loans receivable it has originated to Coﬁna Funding, which are then pledged as collateral under the
note purchase agreements. The notes payable issued by Coﬁna Funding bear interest at variable rates based on commercial paper, with a
weighted-average commercial paper interest rate of 1.82% as of August 31, 2010. Borrowings by Coﬁna Funding utilizing the issuance of
commercial paper under the note purchase agreements totaled $130.0 million as of August 31, 2010. As of August 31, 2010, $55.0 million
of related loans receivable were accounted for as sales when they were surrendered in accordance with authoritative guidance on
accounting for transfers of ﬁnancial assets and extinguishments of liabilities. As a result, the net borrowings under the note purchase
agreements were $75.0 million. Coﬁna Financial also sells loan commitments it has originated to ProPartners Financial (ProPartners) on
a recourse basis. The total capacity for commitments under the ProPartners program is $120.0 million. The total outstanding commitments under the program totaled $90.2 million as of August 31, 2010, of which $71.4 million was borrowed under these commitments
with an interest rate of 2.29%. In addition, Coﬁna Financial borrows funds under short-term notes issued as part of a surplus funds
program. Borrowings under this program are unsecured and bear interest at variable rates ranging from 0.85% to 1.35% as of August 31,
2010, and are due upon demand. Borrowings under these notes totaled $85.9 million as of August 31, 2010.

Based on quoted market prices of similar debt, the carrying value
of the Company’s long-term debt approximated its fair value.

NOTE EIGHT

The aggregate amount of long-term debt payable as of August 31,

The provision for income taxes for the years ended August 31,

2010 is as follows:

Income Taxes

2010, 2009 and 2008 is as follows:

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
Thereafter

$112,503
92,481
101,189
155,020
154,977
370,071
$986,241

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

2010

2009

Current
Deferred
Valuation allowance
Income taxes

$ 8,931
34,691
4,816
$48,438

$19,328
31,665
12,311
$63,304

2008

$45,850
15,578
10,433
$71,861

The Company’s current tax provision is significantly impacted by
the utilization of loss carryforwards and tax benefits passed to the
Company from NCRA. The passthrough tax benefits are associated

Interest, net for the years ended August 31, 2010, 2009 and

with refinery upgrades that enable NCRA to produce ultra-low

2008 is as follows:

sulfur fuels as mandated by the Environmental Protection Agency.

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

Interest expense
Capitalized interest
Interest income
Interest, net

2010

$69,901
(6,212)
(5,365)
$58,324

2009

$85,669
(5,201)
(9,981)
$70,487

2008

$100,123
(9,759)
(13,904)
$ 76,460

Deferred taxes are comprised of basis differences related to
investments, accrued liabilities and certain federal and state
tax credits. NCRA ﬁles separate tax returns and, as such, these
items must be assessed independent of the Company’s deferred
tax assets when determining recoverability.
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NOTE EIGHT

As of August 31, 2010, net deferred taxes of $45.5 million and

Income Taxes, continued

$183.5 million are included in current assets and other liabilities, respectively ($39.2 million and $178.7 million in current

Deferred tax assets and liabilities as of August 31, 2010 and
2009 are as follows:
(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

2010

Deferred tax assets:
Accrued expenses
$ 88,246
Postretirement health care and deferred
compensation
111,437
Tax credit carryforwards
57,449
Loss carryforwards
50,171
Other
35,060
Total deferred tax assets
342,363
Deferred tax liabilities:
Pension
36,341
Investments
56,744
Major maintenance
6,017
Property, plant and equipment
337,654
Other
6,647
Total deferred tax liabilities
443,403
Deferred tax assets valuation reserve
(36,935)
Net deferred tax liabilities
$137,975

2009

$ 83,896
98,922
56,987
65,180
35,435
340,420
34,103
63,780
9,041
308,179
32,681
447,784
(32,119)
$139,483

As of August 31, 2010, a valuation allowance was established in
the amount of $2.6 million to reduce the Company’s deferred tax
asset related to certain foreign subsidiary losses. During the
ﬁscal year ended August 31, 2009, the Company provided a
valuation allowance of $16.3 million related to the carryforward
of certain capital losses that will expire on August 31, 2014. This
valuation allowance was reduced by $0.9 million during ﬁscal
2010 due to the existence of offsetting capital gains.
The Company generated a $5.4 million foreign tax credit carryforward during the ﬁscal year ended August 31, 2009, that
will expire on August 31, 2014. The Company’s general business credit carryforward of $51.5 million will begin to expire on
August 31, 2027. During the year ended August 31, 2007,
NCRA provided a $9.4 million valuation allowance related to
its carryforward of certain state tax credits. This allowance was
reduced by $5.1 million as of August 31, 2009 and increased to
$7.5 million as of August 31, 2010, due to a change in the
amount of credits that are estimated to be used. The remaining
allowance is necessary due to the limited amount of taxable
income generated by NCRA on an annual basis.
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assets and other liabilities, respectively, as of August 31, 2009).
The reconciliation of the statutory federal income tax rates to the
effective tax rates for the years ended August 31, 2010, 2009
and 2008 is as follows:
Statutory federal income tax rate
State and local income taxes, net of
federal income tax beneﬁt
Patronage earnings
Export activities at rates other than the
U.S. statutory rate
Valuation allowance
Tax credits
Other
Effective tax rate

2010

2009

35.0%

35.0%

35.0%

0.8
(23.8)

0.0
(25.5)

0.0
(24.1)

1.0
0.8
(0.2)
(5.3)
8.3%

0.3
2.4
(0.7)
1.1
12.6%

2008

(0.1)
1.1
(2.1)
(2.2)
7.6%

The Company ﬁles income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction, and various state and foreign jurisdictions. With few
exceptions, the Company is no longer subject to U.S. federal,
state and local examinations by tax authorities for years ending
on or before August 31, 2005.
The Company accounts for its income tax provisions of ASC
Topic 740, Income Taxes, which prescribes a minimum threshold that a tax provision is required to meet before being recognized in the consolidated ﬁnancial statements. This
interpretation requires the Company to recognize in the consolidated ﬁnancial statements tax positions determined more likely
than not to be sustained upon examination, based on the technical merits of the position. A reconciliation of the gross beginning and ending amounts of unrecognized tax beneﬁts for the
periods presented is as follows:
(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

2010

Beginning balances
$72,519
Increases for current year tax
positions
Increases for tax positions of prior
years
Reductions for tax positions of
prior years
Reductions attributable to statute
expiration
(3,162)
Balances at August 31
$69,357

2009

$ 5,840

2008

$ 7,259

1,381
65,697
(1,419)
(399)
$72,519

$ 5,840

The increase in the unrecognized tax beneﬁt of $65.7 million

annual pro-rata program for equities held by them and another

during ﬁscal 2009 relates to clariﬁcations received from the
Internal Revenue Service on the method used for calculating

for individual members who are eligible for equity redemptions
at age 70 or upon death. The amount that each non-individual

the Company’s production tax credits under Section 199 for

member receives under the pro-rata program in any year will be

which the ultimate deductibility is highly certain but for which
there is uncertainty about the amount deductible in prior peri-

determined by multiplying the dollars available for pro-rata
redemptions, if any that year, as determined by the Board of

ods. The unrecognized tax beneﬁt, if recognized, would affect the

Directors, by a fraction, the numerator of which is the amount of

annual effective tax rate. The Company does not believe it is

patronage certiﬁcates eligible for redemption held by them, and

reasonably possible that the total amounts of unrecognized tax
beneﬁts will signiﬁcantly increase or decrease during the

the denominator of which is the sum of the patronage certiﬁcates
eligible for redemption held by all eligible holders of patronage

next 12 months.

certiﬁcates that are not individuals. In accordance with autho-

The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to unrec-

rization from the Board of Directors, the Company expects total
redemptions related to the year ended August 31, 2010, that will

ognized tax beneﬁts in its provision for income taxes. During the
years ended August 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company recognized approximately $0.3 million and $0.3 million in interest,
respectively. The Company had approximately $0.9 million and
$0.6 million for the payment of interest accrued on August 31,
2010 and 2009, respectively.

NOTE NINE

be distributed in ﬁscal 2011, to be approximately $67.6 million.
These expected distributions are classiﬁed as a current liability
on the August 31, 2010 Consolidated Balance Sheet.
For the years ended August 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, the
Company redeemed in cash, equities in accordance with authorization from the Board of Directors, in the amounts of $23.1 mil-

Equities

lion, $49.7 million and $81.8 million, respectively. An

In accordance with the by-laws and by action of the Board of

additional $36.7 million, $49.9 million and $46.4 million of
capital equity certiﬁcates were redeemed in ﬁscal years 2010,

Directors, annual net earnings from patronage sources are dis-

2009 and 2008, respectively, by issuance of shares of the

tributed to consenting patrons following the close of each fiscal
year, and are based on amounts using financial statement earn-

Company’s 8% Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock (Preferred Stock). The amount of equities redeemed with each share

ings. The cash portion of the patronage distribution is determined

of Preferred Stock issued was $28.30, $25.90 and $25.65,

annually by the Board of Directors, with the balance issued in the
form of capital equity certificates. Total patronage refunds for

which was the closing price per share of the stock on the
NASDAQ Global Select Market on February 22, 2010,

fiscal 2010 are estimated to be $396.5 million, while the cash

January 23, 2009 and February 11, 2008, respectively.

portion, determined by the Board of Directors to be 35%, is estimated to be $138.8 million. The actual patronage refunds and

The Preferred Stock is listed on the NASDAQ Global Select

cash portion for fiscal years 2009 and 2008 were $438.0 million
($153.9 million in cash) and $648.9 million ($227.6 million in
cash), respectively. By action of the Board of Directors, patronage
losses incurred in fiscal 2009 from the wholesale crop nutrients
business, totaling $60.2 million, were offset against the fiscal
2008 wholesale crop nutrients and CF patronage through the
cancellation of capital equity certificates in fiscal 2010.
Annual net savings from sources other than patronage may be
added to the unallocated capital reserve or, upon action by the
Board of Directors, may be allocated to members in the form of
nonpatronage equity certiﬁcates. Redemptions are at the discretion of the Board of Directors.

Market under the symbol CHSCP. On August 31, 2010, the
Company had 12,272,003 shares of Preferred Stock outstanding with a total redemption value of approximately
$306.8 million, excluding accumulated dividends. The Preferred Stock accumulates dividends at a rate of 8% per year,
which are payable quarterly, and is redeemable at the Company’s option. At this time, the Company has no current plan or
intent to redeem any Preferred Stock.

NOTE TEN

Beneﬁt Plans

The Company has various pension and other deﬁned beneﬁt and
deﬁned contribution plans, in which substantially all employees

Redemptions of capital equity certiﬁcates approved by the Board

may participate. The Company also has non-qualiﬁed supple-

of Directors are divided into two pools, one for non-individuals
(primarily member cooperatives) who may participate in an

mental executive and board retirement plans.
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NOTE TEN

Beneﬁt Plans, continued
Financial information on changes in beneﬁt obligation and plan assets funded and balance sheets status as of August 31, 2010 and
2009 is as follows:
(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

Change in beneﬁt obligation:
Beneﬁt obligation at beginning of period
Service cost
Interest cost
Actuarial loss (gain)
Assumption change
Plan amendments
Special agreements
Medicare D
Beneﬁts paid
Beneﬁt obligation at end of period
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of period
Actual gain (loss) on plan assets
Company contributions
Beneﬁts paid
Fair value of plan assets at end of period
Funded status at end of period

QUALIFIED
PENSION BENEFITS
2010
2009

$415,469
20,774
23,034
5,634
53,587
392

$354,134
18,252
25,296
6,872
38,815

NON-QUALIFIED
PENSION BENEFITS
2010
2009

$ 40,524
1,220
2,235
239
4,995

OTHER BENEFITS
2010
2009

$ 38,190
1,385
2,781
(2,940)
3,274

$ 38,202
1,386
2,153
1,016
4,368

$ 34,378
1,153
2,971
(2,024)
3,317
283
356
(2,232)
$ 38,202

(25,289)
$493,601

(27,900)
$415,469

(1,980)
$ 47,233

(2,166)
$ 40,524

1,722
105
(2,690)
$ 46,262

$410,181
23,469
70,000
(25,289)
$478,361

$366,550
(38,169)
109,700
(27,900)
$410,181

$ 1,980
(1,980)
$
—

$ 2,166
(2,166)
$
—

$ 2,690
(2,690)
$
—

$ 2,232
(2,232)
$
—

$ (15,240)

$ (5,288)

$(47,233)

$(40,524)

$(46,262)

$(38,202)

$ (8,231)
(39,002)
$(47,233)

$ (2,936)
(37,588)
$(40,524)

$ (2,834)
(43,428)
$(46,262)

$ (2,168)
(36,034)
$(38,202)

$

$ 1,055
8,912
(195)
$ 9,772

$ 2,586
(312)
6,199
(1,997)
$ 6,476

$ 3,522
(498)
827
(1,402)
$ 2,449

Amounts recognized on balance sheet:
Non-current assets
Accrued beneﬁt cost:
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Ending balance

$ (15,240)
$ (15,240)

(10,692)
$ (5,288)

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive
loss (pretax):
Net transition obligation
Prior service cost (credit)
Net loss
Noncontrolling interests
Ending balance

$ 13,185
289,853
(25,112)
$277,926

$ 14,985
227,803
(21,115)
$221,673

$

5,404

638
13,527
(184)
$ 13,981

The accumulated beneﬁt obligation of the qualiﬁed pension plans was $459.5 million and $386.5 million at August 31, 2010 and
2009, respectively. The accumulated beneﬁt obligation of the non-qualiﬁed pension plans was $31.3 million and $26.5 million at
August 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
The assumption changes for the ﬁscal years ended August 31, 2010 and 2009, relates to reductions in the discount rate for both CHS
and NCRA qualiﬁed pension plans. The reduction in the discount rate was due to the reduction in the yield curves for investment
grade corporate bonds that CHS and NCRA have historically used.
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For measurement purposes, a 7.5% annual rate of increase in the per capita cost of covered health care beneﬁts was assumed for the
year ended August 31, 2010. The rate was assumed to decrease gradually to 5.0% by 2043 and remain at that level thereafter.
Components of net periodic beneﬁt costs for the years ended August 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 are as follows:
QUALIFIED
PENSION BENEFITS
2009
2008

2010

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

Components of net periodic beneﬁt costs:
Service cost
$ 20,774
Interest cost
23,034
Expected return on assets
(36,875)
Special agreements
Prior service cost (credit) amortization
2,193
Actuarial loss (gain) amortization
10,578
Transition amount amortization
Net periodic beneﬁt cost
$ 19,704
Adjustment to retained earnings for
measurement date change

$ 1,593

Weighted average assumptions to
determine the net periodic beneﬁt cost:
Discount rate
Expected return on plan assets
Rate of compensation increase
Weighted average assumptions to
determine the beneﬁt obligations:
Discount rate
Rate of compensation increase

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

Amortization of transition
obligation
Amortization of prior service
cost (beneﬁt)
Amortization of net
actuarial loss
Noncontrolling interests

$1,220
2,235

$1,200
2,399

$1,246
2,190

$1,385
2,154

$1,101
2,771

$1,175
1,814

2,115
5,046

2,164
4,887

419
617

546
667

467
579
841

$ 15,058

$ 12,430

$4,491

$4,812

$5,323

1,722
(186)
11
936
$6,022

283
347
(215)
936
$5,223

4,000
(320)
(165)
935
$7,439

$ 763

$ 294

5.75%
8.25%
4.50%

6.05%
8.25%
4.50%

6.25%
8.75%
4.50%

5.75%
N/A
4.50%

6.05%
N/A
4.50%

6.25%
N/A
4.50%

5.75%
N/A
4.50%

6.05%
N/A
4.50%

6.25%
N/A
4.50%

4.75%
4.50%

5.75%
4.50%

6.75%
4.50%

4.75%
4.50%

5.75%
4.50%

6.75%
4.50%

4.75%
4.50%

5.75%
4.50%

6.75%
4.50%

NONQUALIFIED
PENSION
BENEFITS

$12.2 million, for the years ended August 31, 2010, 2009 and
2008, respectively.

$ 936

The Company contributed $70.0 million to qualified pension plans
in fiscal 2010. Based on the funded status of the qualified pension
plans as of August 31, 2010, the Company does not expect to

$ 2,327

$140

(123)

15,856
(1,634)

998
(7)

366
(141)

would have the following effects:
1% INCREASE

The Company has other contributory deﬁned contribution plans
covering substantially all employees. Total contributions by the
Company to these plans were $17.3 million, $14.9 million and

OTHER
BENEFITS

age point change in the assumed health care cost trend rates
(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

OTHER BENEFITS
2009
2008

$ 15,387
21,266
(31,274)

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a signiﬁcant effect on
the amounts reported for the health care plans. A one-percent-

Effect on total of service and
interest cost components
Effect on postretirement
beneﬁt obligation

2010

$ 16,318
22,837
(31,258)

The estimated amortization in fiscal 2011 from accumulated other
comprehensive income into net periodic benefit cost is as follows:
QUALIFIED
PENSION
BENEFITS

NON-QUALIFIED
PENSION BENEFITS
2010
2009
2008

contribute to these plans in fiscal 2011. The Company expects to
pay $11.1 million to participants of the non-qualified pension and
postretirement benefit plans during fiscal 2011.
The Company’s retiree beneﬁt payments which reﬂect expected
future service are anticipated to be paid as follows:

(DOLLARS IN
THOUSANDS)

QUALIFIED
PENSION
BENEFITS

NONQUALIFIED
PENSION
BENEFITS

2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016-2020

$ 28,494
30,302
32,933
34,998
38,719
227,291

$ 8,231
4,743
4,301
3,078
3,075
18,636

1% DECREASE

$ 468

$ (391)

4,249

(3,710)

The Company provides deﬁned life insurance and health care
beneﬁts for certain retired employees and Board of Directors’
participants. The plan is contributory based on years of service
and family status, with retiree contributions adjusted annually.

OTHER BENEFITS
GROSS MEDICARE D

$ 2,833
3,189
3,165
3,332
3,430
18,438

$100
100
100
100
100
600
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NOTE TEN

Beneﬁt Plans, continued
The Company has trusts that hold the assets for the defined benefit

August 31, 2010 are as follows:
(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

LEVEL 1

LEVEL 2

$459,089

$7,158
2

LEVEL 3

$ 9,407

$466,247
9,409

TOTAL

$7,160

2,705
$12,112

2,705
$478,361

• optimization of the long-term returns on plan assets at an

Mutual funds
Real estate fund
Other assets –
hedge funds
Total

acceptable level of risk, and
• maintenance of a broad diversiﬁcation across asset classes and

Deﬁnitions for valuation levels are found in Note 12. The Com-

plans. The Company and NCRA have qualified plan committees
that set investment guidelines with the assistance of external consultants. Investment objectives for the Company’s plan assets are:

among investment managers, and

$459,089

• focus on long-term return objectives.

pany uses the following valuation methodologies for assets measured at fair value.

Asset allocation targets promote optimal expected return and

Mutual funds: Valued at quoted market prices, which are based on

volatility characteristics given the long-term time horizon for
fulfilling the obligations of the pension plans. The plans’ target
allocation percentages are 35% in fixed income securities and 65%
in equity securities. An annual analysis of the risk versus the
return of the investment portfolio is conducted to justify the
expected long-term rate of return assumption. The Company
generally uses long-term historical return information for the
targeted asset mix identified in asset and liability studies. Adjustments are made to the expected long-term rate of return assumption, when deemed necessary, based upon revised expectations of
future investment performance of the overall investment markets.
The discount rate reﬂects the rate at which the associated beneﬁts could be effectively settled as of the measurement date. In
estimating this rate, the Company looks at rates of return on
ﬁxed-income investments of similar duration to the liabilities in
the plans that receive high, investment-grade ratings by recognized ratings agencies.
The investment portfolio contains a diversified portfolio of investment categories, including domestic and international equities,
fixed-income securities and real estate. Securities are also diversified in terms of domestic and international securities, short and

the net asset value of shares held by the plan at year end. Mutual
funds traded in active markets are classified within Level 1 of the
fair value hierarchy. Certain of the mutual fund investments held
by the plan are money market mutual funds, which have observable inputs other than Level 1.The money market mutual funds are
classified within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.
Real Estate funds: Valued quarterly at estimated fair value
based on the underlying investee funds in which the real estate
fund invests. This information is compiled, in addition to any
other assets and liabilities (accrued expenses and unit-holder
transactions), to determine the fund’s unit value. The real estate
fund is not traded on an active market and is classiﬁed within
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
Hedge funds:

Valued at estimated fair value based on prices

quoted by various national markets and publications and/or
independent ﬁnancial analysts. These investments are classiﬁed
within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
The preceding methods described may produce a fair value
calculation that may not be indicative of the net realizable value
or reﬂective of future fair values. Furthermore, although the

long-term securities, growth and value equities, large and small
cap stocks, as well as active and passive management styles.

plan believes its valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different meth-

The committees believe that with prudent risk tolerance and

ﬁnancial instruments could result in a different fair value

asset diversiﬁcation, the plans should be able to meet pension
obligations in the future.
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odologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain

measurement at the reporting date. The following table sets forth

segment derives its revenues from the sales of soybean meal, soy-

a summary of changes in the fair value of the plan’s Level 3
assets for the year ended August 31, 2010.

bean refined oil and soy-based food products, and records equity
income from two wheat milling joint ventures, a vegetable oil-based

REAL
ESTATE
FUNDS

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

Balances at beginning of period
Unrealized (losses) gains
Purchases, sales, issuances
and settlements, net
Total

food manufacturing and distribution joint venture, and during
HEDGE
FUNDS

TOTAL

$10,335 $1,091
(939)
126

$11,426
(813)

11
$ 9,407

1,499
$12,112

1,488
$2,705

NOTE ELEVEN

Segment Reporting

The Company aligned its segments based on an assessment of
how its businesses operate and the products and services it sells.
As a result of this assessment, the Company has three segments:
Energy, Ag Business and Processing.
The Energy segment derives its revenues through refining, wholesaling, marketing and retailing of petroleum products. The Ag
Business segment derives its revenues through the sales of wholesale crop nutrients, the origination and marketing of grain, including service activities conducted at export terminals, through the
retail sales of petroleum and agronomy products, processed sunflowers, feed and farm supplies, and records equity income from
investments in the Company’s agronomy joint ventures, grain
export joint ventures and other investments. The Processing

fiscal 2009 and 2008, an ethanol manufacturing company. The
Company includes other business operations in Corporate and
Other because of the nature of their products and services, as well
as the relative revenue size of those businesses. These businesses
primarily include the Company’s financing, insurance, hedging
and other service activities related to crop production.
Reconciling Amounts represent the elimination of revenues
between segments. Such transactions are conducted at market
prices to more accurately evaluate the proﬁtability of the individual segments.
The Company assigns certain corporate general and administrative expenses to its segments based on use of such services
and allocates other services based on factors or considerations
relevant to the costs incurred.
Expenses that are incurred at the corporate level for the purpose of
the general operation of the Company are allocated to the segments
based upon factors which management considers non-symmetrical. Due to efficiencies in scale, cost allocations and intersegment
activity, management does not represent that these segments, if
operated independently, would report the income before income
taxes and other financial information as presented.
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NOTE ELEVEN

Segment Reporting,

continued

Segment information for the years ended August 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 is as follows:
CORPORATE
AND OTHER

RECONCILING
AMOUNTS

ENERGY

AG BUSINESS

PROCESSING

$ 8,799,890

$15,678,160

$1,061,654

44,922

$(316,695)

$25,267,931

8,437,504

15,261,056

1,018,731

(3,186)

(316,695)

24,397,410

Gross proﬁt

362,386

417,104

42,923

48,108

—

870,521

Marketing, general and administrative
Operating earnings

123,834
238,552

173,766
243,338

25,764
17,159

43,218
4,890

—

366,582
503,939

(269)

(28,807)

Interest, net

9,939

28,033

19,605

747

58,324

Equity income from investments

(5,554)

(25,173)

(77,159)

(901)

(108,787)

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

For the year ended August 31, 2010:
Revenues
Cost of goods sold

Gain on investments

$

TOTAL

(357)

Income before income taxes

$

234,436

$

269,285

$

74,713

Intersegment revenues

$

(295,536)

$

(19,259)

$

(1,900)

Goodwill

$

1,165

$

14,975

$

5,401

(29,433)

$

—

$

$ 316,695

$

583,835
—

$

6,898

$

23,038

Capital expenditures

$

197,637

$

116,175

$

6,293

$

4,157

$

324,262

Depreciation and amortization

$

118,071

$

58,972

$

17,027

$

8,852

$

202,922

Total identiﬁable assets at August 31, 2010

$ 3,004,471

$ 3,583,341

$ 696,738

$1,381,578

$ 7,639,838
7,110,324

$17,196,448
16,937,877

$1,142,636
1,099,177

$

$ 8,666,128

For the year ended August 31, 2009:
Revenues
Cost of goods sold

45,298
(3,173)

$(294,304)
(294,304)
—

Gross proﬁt

529,514

258,571

43,459

48,471

Marketing, general and administrative

125,104

158,395

25,724

46,076

Operating earnings
(Gain) loss on investments

404,410
(15,748)

100,176
(2,285)

17,735
74,338

2,395

$25,729,916
24,849,901
880,015
355,299

—

524,716
56,305

Interest, net

5,483

46,995

21,841

(3,832)

70,487

Equity income from investments

(4,044)

(18,222)

(82,525)

(963)

(105,754)

Income before income taxes

$

418,719

$

73,688

$

4,081

Intersegment revenues

$

(251,626)

$

(39,919)

$

(2,759)

Goodwill

$

1,983

$

8,465

$

7,190

$

—

$

$ 294,304

$

503,678
—

$

6,898

$

17,346

Capital expenditures

$

233,112

$

72,155

$

7,444

$

2,794

$

315,505

Depreciation and amortization

$

118,260

$

53,421

$

16,805

$

7,864

$

196,350

Total identiﬁable assets at August 31, 2009

$ 3,025,522

$ 2,987,394

$ 685,865

$1,171,064

$11,499,814
11,027,459

$19,696,907
19,088,079

$1,299,209
1,240,944

$

$ 7,869,845

For the year ended August 31, 2008:
Revenues
Cost of goods sold
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31,363
(2,751)

$(359,832)
(359,832)

$32,167,461
30,993,899

—

1,173,562

Gross proﬁt

472,355

608,828

58,265

34,114

Marketing, general and administrative

111,121

160,364

26,089

32,391

Operating earnings
(Gain) loss on investments

361,234
(35)

448,464
(100,830)

32,176
72,602

1,723
(930)

329,965
—

843,597
(29,193)

Interest, net

(5,227)

63,665

21,995

(3,973)

76,460

Equity income from investments

(5,054)

(83,053)

(56,615)

(5,691)

(150,413)

Income (loss) before income taxes

$

371,550

$

568,682

$

(5,806)

Intersegment revenues

$

(322,522)

$

(36,972)

$

(338)

Capital expenditures

$

251,401

$

56,704

$

5,994

$

Depreciation and amortization

$

107,949

$

50,933

$

15,902

$
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$

12,317

—

$

$ 359,832

$

$

946,743
—

4,460

$

318,559

6,479

$

181,263

International sales for the years ended August 31, 2010, 2009

Level 1: Values are based on unadjusted quoted prices in active

and 2008 are as follows:

markets for identical assets or liabilities. These assets and liabilities include the Company’s exchange traded derivative contracts,

(DOLLARS IN MILLIONS)

Africa
Asia
Europe
North America, excluding U.S.
South America

2010

2009

$ 395
2,891
209
1,210
736
$5,441

$ 305
3,664
371
1,253
491
$6,084

2008

$ 505
3,000
488
1,399
922
$6,314

Rabbi Trust investments and available-for-sale investments.
Level 2: Values are based on quoted prices for similar assets or
liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or
similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, or
other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by
observable market data for substantially the full term of the

NOTE TWELVE

assets or liabilities. These assets and liabilities include the

ASC 820 deﬁnes fair value as the price that would be received
for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in a

contracts, flat price or basis fixed derivative contracts and

Fair Value Measurements
principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants on the
measurement date.
The Company determines the fair market values of its readily
marketable inventories, derivative contracts and certain other
assets, based on the fair value hierarchy established in ASC 820,
which requires an entity to maximize the use of observable
inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when
measuring fair value. Observable inputs are inputs that reﬂect
the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the
asset or liability based on the best information available in the
circumstances. ASC 820 describes three levels within its hierarchy that may be used to measure fair value, which are:

Company’s readily marketable inventories, interest rate
swaps, forward commodity and freight purchase and sales
other OTC derivatives whose value is determined with inputs
that are based on exchange traded prices, adjusted for location
specific inputs that are primarily observable in the market or
can be derived principally from, or corroborated by, observable market data.
Level 3: Values are generated from unobservable inputs that are
supported by little or no market activity and that are a signiﬁcant
component of the fair value of the assets or liabilities. These
unobservable inputs would reﬂect the Company’s own estimates of assumptions that market participants would use in
pricing related assets or liabilities. Valuation techniques might
include the use of pricing models, discounted cash ﬂow models
or similar techniques. These assets previously included certain
short-term investments made by NCRA.
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NOTE TWELVE

Fair Value Measurements,

continued

The following table presents assets and liabilities, included in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets, that are recognized at
fair value on a recurring basis, and indicates the fair value hierarchy utilized to determine such fair value. Assets and liabilities are
classiﬁed, in their entirety, based on the lowest level of input that is a signiﬁcant component of the fair value measurement. The
lowest level of input is considered Level 3. The Company’s assessment of the signiﬁcance of a particular input to the fair value
measurement requires judgment, and may affect the classiﬁcation of fair value assets and liabilities within the fair value hierarchy
levels. Fair value measurements at August 31, 2010 and 2009 are as follows:
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS AT AUGUST 31, 2010
QUOTED PRICES IN
ACTIVE MARKETS
FOR IDENTICAL
ASSETS
(LEVEL 1)

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

Assets:
Readily marketable inventories
Commodity and freight derivatives
Other assets
Total Assets

$ 38,342
62,612
$100,954

Liabilities:
Commodity and freight derivatives
Foreign currency derivatives
Interest rate swap derivatives
Total Liabilities

$ 79,940
222
$ 80,162

SIGNIFICANT
OTHER
OBSERVABLE
INPUTS
(LEVEL 2)

SIGNIFICANT
UNOBSERVABLE
INPUTS
(LEVEL 3)

$1,057,910
208,279

TOTAL

$1,057,910
246,621
62,612
$1,367,143

$1,266,189
$ 204,629

$ 284,569
222
1,227
$ 286,018

1,227
$ 205,856

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS AT AUGUST 31, 2009

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

Assets:
Readily marketable inventories
Commodity and freight derivatives
Short-term investments
Other assets
Total Assets

QUOTED PRICES IN
ACTIVE MARKETS
FOR IDENTICAL
ASSETS
(LEVEL 1)

SIGNIFICANT
OTHER
OBSERVABLE
INPUTS
(LEVEL 2)

$ 68,116

$ 706,104
103,224

SIGNIFICANT
UNOBSERVABLE
INPUTS
(LEVEL 3)

$1,932
53,326
$121,442

Liabilities:
Commodity and freight derivatives
Interest rate swap derivatives
Total Liabilities

$ 27,145
$ 27,145

$ 809,328
$ 274,060
4,911
$ 278,971

$1,932

TOTAL

$ 706,104
171,340
1,932
53,326
$ 932,702
$ 301,205
4,911
$ 306,116

Company’s

in local markets. Changes in the fair market values of these inven-

readily marketable inventories primarily include its grain and
oilseed inventories that are stated at fair values. These commodities

tories are recognized in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of
Operations as a component of cost of goods sold.

READILY

MARKETABLE

INVENTORIES — The

are readily marketable, have quoted market prices and may be sold

52

without significant additional processing. The Company estimates
the fair market values of these inventories included in Level 2

COMMODITY, FREIGHT AND FOREIGN CURRENCY DERIVATIVES —
Exchange traded futures and options contracts are valued based

primarily based on exchange quoted prices, adjusted for differences

on unadjusted quoted prices in active markets and are classiﬁed
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within Level 1. The Company’s forward commodity purchase
and sales contracts, ﬂat price or basis ﬁxed derivative contracts,
ocean freight contracts and other OTC derivatives are determined using inputs that are generally based on exchange traded
prices and/or recent market bids and offers, adjusted for location
speciﬁc inputs, and are classiﬁed within Level 2. The location
speciﬁc inputs are generally broker or dealer quotations, or
market transactions in either the listed or OTC markets.
Changes in the fair values of these contracts are recognized in
the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations as a
component of cost of goods sold.
SHORT–TERM INVESTMENTS — The Company’s short-term
investments represented an enhanced cash fund at NCRA that
was closed due to credit-market turmoil, and were classiﬁed
within Level 3. These investments were valued using discounted
cash ﬂows to determine the fair market values.
OTHER ASSETS — The Company’s available-for-sale investments in common stock of other companies and its Rabbi Trust
assets are valued based on unadjusted quoted prices on active

NOTE THIRTEEN

Commitments and
Contingencies
Environmental

The Company is required to comply with various environmental
laws and regulations incidental to its normal business operations.
In order to meet its compliance requirements, the Company
establishes reserves for the probable future costs of remediation
of identified issues, which are included in cost of goods sold and
marketing, general and administrative in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. The resolution of any such matters may
affect consolidated net income for any fiscal period; however,
management believes any resulting liabilities, individually or in
the aggregate, will not have a material effect on the consolidated
financial position, results of operations or cash flows of the Company during any fiscal year.
The Environmental Protection Agency has passed a regulation

exchanges and are classiﬁed within Level 1.

that requires the reduction of the benzene level in gasoline by
January 1, 2011. As a result of this regulation, the Company’s

INTEREST RATE SWAP DERIVATIVES — Fair values of the

refineries will incur capital expenditures to reduce the current

Company’s interest rate swap liabilities are determined utilizing
valuation models that are widely accepted in the market to value
such OTC derivative contracts. The speciﬁc terms of the con-

gasoline benzene levels to the regulated levels. The Company
anticipates the combined capital expenditures for the Laurel,
Montana and NCRA refineries to be approximately $114 million,

tracts, as well as market observable inputs such as interest rates

of which $76 million has been spent through August 31, 2010.

and credit risk assumptions, are factored into the models. As all
signiﬁcant inputs are market observable, all interest rate swaps

Other Litigation and Claims

are classiﬁed within Level 2.

The Company is involved as a defendant in various lawsuits,

The table below represents reconciliations at August 31, 2010
and 2009 for assets measured at fair value using signiﬁcant
unobservable inputs (Level 3). This consists of certain short-term
investments of NCRA that were carried at fair value and reﬂect
assumptions a marketplace participant would use.
(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

Balances, September 1
Realized/unrealized losses included in
marketing, general and administrative
Settlements
Balances, August 31

2010

2009

$ 1,932

$ 6,900

38
(1,970)
$
—

(643)
(4,325)
$ 1,932

claims and disputes, which are in the normal course of the
Company’s business. The resolution of any such matters may
affect consolidated net income for any ﬁscal period; however,
management believes any resulting liabilities, individually or in
the aggregate, will not have a material effect on the consolidated
ﬁnancial position, results of operations or cash ﬂows of the
Company during any ﬁscal year.

Grain Storage

As of August 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company stored grain for
third parties totaling $246.2 million and $283.0 million, respectively. Such stored commodities and products are not the property of the Company and therefore are not included in the
Company’s inventories.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE THIRTEEN

NOTE FOURTEEN

Guarantees

Additional information concerning supplemental disclosures of
cash ﬂow activities for the years ended August 31, 2010, 2009

Commitments and
Contingencies, continued

Supplemental Cash Flow
and Other Information

The Company is a guarantor for lines of credit and performance
obligations of related companies. The Company’s bank covenants allow maximum guarantees of $500.0 million, of which
$29.4 million was outstanding on August 31, 2010. The Company has collateral for a portion of these contingent obligations.
The Company has not recorded a liability related to the contingent obligations as it does not expect to pay out any cash related
to them, and the fair values are considered immaterial. The
underlying loans to the counterparties for which we provide
guarantees are current as of August 31, 2010.

Lease Commitments

The Company is committed under operating lease agreements
for approximately 2,000 rail cars with remaining terms of one to
ten years. In addition, the Company has commitments under
other operating leases for various reﬁnery, manufacturing and
transportation equipment, vehicles and ofﬁce space. Some
leases include purchase options at not less than fair market
value at the end of the lease terms.
Total rental expense for all operating leases, net of rail car mileage
credits received from railroad and sublease income, was $64.3 million, $61.1 million and $58.3 million for the years ended August 31,
2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively. Mileage credits and sublease
income totaled $1.4 million, $1.3 million and $3.8 million for the
years ended August 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
Minimum future lease payments, required under noncancellable operating leases as of August 31, 2010 are as follows:
(DOLLARS IN
THOUSANDS)

2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
Thereafter
Total minimum
future lease
payments
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RAIL CARS

VEHICLES

EQUIPMENT
AND OTHER

$11,531
8,560
6,161
4,069
3,147
7,509

$22,067
17,132
12,439
8,111
4,657
722

$ 9,248
7,749
5,607
3,507
3,061
9,280

$ 42,846
33,441
24,207
15,687
10,865
17,511

$40,977

$65,128

$38,452

$144,557
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TOTAL

and 2008 is as follows:
2010

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

Net cash paid during the
period for:
Interest
$ 65,400
Income taxes
15,899
Other signiﬁcant noncash
investing and
ﬁnancing transactions:
Capital equity certiﬁcates
exchanged for
Preferred Stock
36,674
Capital equity certiﬁcates
cancelled for ﬁscal
2009 patronage losses
in wholesale
crop nutrients
60,154
Capital equity certificates
issued in exchange for
Ag Business acquisitions
616
Accrual of dividends and
equities payable
(210,435)

2009

2008

$ 81,146
76,670

$ 79,590
20,772

49,944

46,364

19,594

4,680

(203,056)

(325,039)

NOTE FIFTEEN

Related Party Transactions

Related party transactions with equity investees for the years
ended August 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively, and balances as of August 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively, are
as follows:
(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

Sales
Purchases

2010

2009

$2,276,682
961,062

$2,528,330
1,215,786

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

Receivables
Payables

2010

$31,792
34,438

2008

$3,451,365
1,248,436
2009

$14,987
30,741

The related party transactions were primarily with TEMCO,
LLC, Horizon Milling, LLC, United Harvest, LLC, Ventura
Foods, LLC and Agriliance LLC.

NOTE SIXTEEN

Comprehensive Income

The components of comprehensive income, net of taxes, for the years ended August 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 are as follows:
(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

2010

Net income including noncontrolling interests
$535,397
Pension and other postretirement, net of tax beneﬁt of $30,847, $53,408 and $12,675 in 2010, 2009
and 2008, respectively
(47,667)
Unrealized net loss on available for sale investments, net of tax beneﬁt of $477, $6,687 and $40,979
in 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively
(750)
Amortization of treasury locks, net of tax expense of $227, $258 and $297 in 2010, 2009
and 2008, respectively
356
Energy derivative instruments qualiﬁed for hedge accounting, net of tax beneﬁt of $1,540 in 2010
(2,419)
Foreign currency translation adjustment, net of tax (beneﬁt) expense of $(791), $(1,570) and $56
in 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively
(1,242)
Other comprehensive loss
(51,722)
Total comprehensive income, including noncontrolling interests
483,675
Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests
30,513
Comprehensive income attributable to CHS Inc.
$453,162

2009

2008

$440,374

$874,882

(82,069)

(19,317)

(10,503)

(64,366)

405

465

(2,466)
(94,633)
345,741
52,562
$293,179

87
(83,131)
791,751
69,784
$721,967

The components of accumulated other comprehensive income, net of taxes, as of August 31, 2010 and 2009 are as follows:
(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

2010

Pension and other postretirement, net of tax beneﬁt of $141,097 and $110,250 in 2010 and 2009, respectively $(218,512)
Unrealized net gain on available for sale investments, net of tax expense of $204 and $681 in 2010
and 2009, respectively
320
Treasury locks, net of tax beneﬁt of $616 and $843 in 2010 and 2009, respectively
(968)
Energy derivative instruments qualiﬁed for hedge accounting, net of tax beneﬁt of $1,540 in 2010
(2,419)
Foreign currency translation adjustment, net of tax (beneﬁt) expense of $(34) and $757 in 2010
and 2009, respectively
(54)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, including noncontrolling interests
(221,633)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss attributable to noncontrolling interests
(16,366)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss attributable to CHS Inc.
$(205,267)

2009

$(170,845)
1,070
(1,324)

1,188
(169,911)
(13,641)
$(156,270)
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our team

Board of Directors

CHS directors are agribusiness professionals elected
by CHS member-owners, and represent diverse
agricultural, financial and cooperative experiences.
The CHS board has completed the National Association of Corporate Directors comprehensive Director
Professionalism course. Each director was subsequently awarded a Certificate of Director Education.

michael toelle, chairman (elected 1992;
chairman since 2002): Chairman of CHS Foundation. Served more than 15 years as director
and chairman of Country Partners Cooperative
of Browns Valley, Minn., and its predecessor
companies. Serves as CHS representative on
the Nationwide Insurance sponsors committee;
serves on the 25x’25 Renewable Fuels Steering
Committee; has served as director and chairman of Agriculture Council of America; and
is active in several cooperative and commodity organizations. Holds a bachelor’s degree in
industrial technology from Moorhead (Minn.)
State University. Operates a grain and hog farm
near Browns Valley, Minn.
robert bass, first vice chairman (1994): Chairman of Audit Committee. Director and officer for
the former Co-op Country Partners Cooperative,
Baraboo, Wis., and its predecessors for 15 years,
and is a director for Cooperative Network. Holds a
bachelor’s degree in agricultural education from
the University of Wisconsin–Madison. Operates
a crop and dairy operation near Reedsburg, Wis.

jerry hasnedl, secretary-treasurer (1995):
Chairman of board’s Capital Committee and
serves on Government Relations Committee.
Former chairman of CHS Wheat Milling Defined
Member Board. Former director and secretary
for St. Hilaire (Minn.) Cooperative Elevator and
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Northwest Grain. Member of American Coalition for Ethanol and Cooperative Network and
serves on Minnesota Sunflower Research and
Promotion Council. Earned associate’s degree
in agricultural economics and has certification
in advanced farm business from Northland College, Thief River Falls, Minn. Operates a diverse
operation near St. Hilaire, Minn., which includes
small grains, soybeans, corn, sunflowers, malting barley, canola and alfalfa.

curt eischens, second vice chairman (1990):
Chairs Corporate Responsibility Committee.
Served as director and chairman for Farmers
Co-op Association, Canby, Minn., and as chairman for Cooperative Network. Holds a certificate
in farm management from Canby VocationalTechnical College. Operates a corn and soybean
farm near Minneota, Minn.

randy knecht, assistant secretary-treasurer
(2001): Chairs board’s Government Relations
Committee and serves on Corporate Responsibility Committee. Serves on board of Four
Seasons Cooperative, Britton, S.D.; and former
director and chairman of Northern Electric
Cooperative and director of Dakota Value
Capture Cooperative. Involved in local school,
government and civic organizations, plus agricultural and cooperative associations, including
the American Coalition for Ethanol. Holds a
bachelor’s degree in agriculture from South
Dakota State University. Operates a diversified
crop farm and cattle ranch near Houghton, S.D.

bruce anderson, (1995): Chairman of
board’s Governance Committee. Past director
and vice chairman of North Dakota Agricultural

left to right: Knecht, Toelle, Mulcahey,
Schurr, Hasnedl, Bass, Eischens, Kayser

Products Utilization Commission and past board
secretary for North Dakota Farmers Union and
Farmers Union Mutual Insurance Company.
Serves on North Dakota Coordinating Council
for Cooperatives and advisory board for Quentin
Burdick Center for Cooperatives. Served two
terms in the North Dakota House of Representatives. Raises small grains near Glenburn, N.D.

don anthony (2006): Serves on Audit and
CHS Foundation Finance and Investment committees. Served as director and chairman for All
Points Cooperative of Gothenburg, Neb., and
Lexington (Neb.) Co-op Oil. Former director for
Farmland Industries. Serves as chairman of
Nebraska Beginning Farm Board and is a member of Ag Valley Co-op, CHS Agri-Service Center, Ag Builders of Nebraska, Nebraska Farm
Bureau and Nebraska Corn Growers. Holds
a bachelor’s degree in agricultural economics
from the University of Nebraska. Raises corn,
soybeans and alfalfa near Lexington, Neb.

david bielenberg (2009): Serves on board’s
Audit and Government Relations committees.
Previously served on CHS board from 2002 to
2006. Former director and board president for
Wilco Farmers Cooperative, Mt. Angel, Ore., and
chair of the East Valley Water District. Active
in a broad range of agricultural and cooperative organizations. Holds a bachelor of science
degree in agricultural engineering from Oregon
State University; is a graduate of the Texas
A & M University executive program for agricultural producers. Operates a diverse agricultural
business near Silverton, Ore., that includes seed
crops, vegetables, greenhouse plant production
and timberland.

left to right: Carlson, Riegel, Bielenberg,
Anthony, Owen, Kruger, Fritel, Anderson

dennis carlson (2001): Chairs CHS Foun-

greg kruger (2008): Serves on Govern-

steve riegel (2006): Serves on Capital and

dation Finance and Investment Committee and

ment Relations and Corporate Responsibility
committees. Chairman of Countryside Cooperative, Durand, Wis., since its creation in 1998,
after more than a dozen years as a cooperative
director. Served two years each on the CHS
Resolutions and CHS Rules and Credentials
committees. Serves a wide range of agricultural
and local government roles, including president
of Trempealeau County Farm Bureau and chairman of the local land use planning committee.
Operates an 80-cow dairy and crop enterprise
near Eleva, Wis.

Government Relations committees. Director
and chairman of Dodge City (Kan.) Cooperative
Exchange and its predecessor companies. Previously served as director and officer for Co-op
Service, Inc.; advisory director for Bucklin (Kan.)
National Bank; and on the local school board.
Attended Fort Hays State University, majoring
in agriculture, business and animal science.
Operates 300-head cow-calf and stocker cattle
operation; and raises irrigated corn, soybeans,
alfalfa, dryland wheat and milo near Ford, Kan.

michael mulcahey (2003): Serves on Capi-

Government Relations committees. Served as a
director and officer for River Valley Cooperative
of Mt. Joy, Iowa. Serves on Blackhawk Bank
and Trust board and audit and trust committees.
Served eight years as director of Great River
Bank and Trust. Former local school board
member and active in numerous agricultural
and community organizations. Named Iowa Jaycees Outstanding Young Farmer in 2004. Holds
bachelor’s degree in agriculture from Iowa State
University. Raises corn, soybeans and alfalfa
near LeClaire, Iowa, and owns and manages a
beef feedlot and cow-calf herd.

serves on Capital Committee. Former director
and chairman of Farmers Union Oil Company,
Bismarck/Mandan, N.D., and is active in several
agricultural and cooperative organizations.
Operates a diverse grain and livestock operation near Mandan, N.D.

steve fritel (2003): Serves on Corporate
Responsibility and Government Relations
committees. Director for Rugby (N.D.) Farmers
Union Oil Co., former director and chairman for
Rugby Farmers Union Elevator and member of
the former CHS Wheat Milling Defined Member
Board. Director of North Central Experiment
Station Board of Visitors, past member of the
Adult Farm and Ranch Business Management
Advisory Board, and member of numerous agricultural and cooperative organizations. Earned
an associate’s degree from North Dakota State
College of Science, Wahpeton. Raises small
grains, corn, soybeans and sunflowers near
Barton, N.D.

david kayser (2006): Serves on Governance
and CHS Foundation Finance and Investment
committees. Past chairman of South Dakota
Association of Cooperatives and previously
served on CHS Resolutions Committee. Former
director and chairman for Farmer’s Alliance,
Mitchell, S.D., and member of local school and
township boards. Raises corn, soybeans and hay
near Alexandria, S.D., and operates a cow-calf
and feeder calf business.

tal and CHS Foundation Finance and Investment committees. Served for three decades as
director and officer for Crystal Valley Co-op,
Mankato, Minn., and its predecessors; has
served as a director and chairman for South
Central Federated Feeds; and is active in many
agricultural, cooperative and civic organizations. Attended Minnesota State University–
Mankato and the University of Minnesota–
Waseca. Operates a grain farm and raises beef
cattle near Waseca, Minn.

dan schurr (2006): Serves on Audit and

richard owen (1999): Serves on Governance and Government Relations committees.
Director for Mountain View, LLC; president
of Montana Cooperative Development Center;
and president of ArmorAuto, LLC. Previously
served as director and officer for Central Montana Cooperative, Lewistown, Mont., and its
predecessor organization. Holds a bachelor’s
degree in agricultural economics from Montana
State University. Raises small grains and specialty crops near Geraldine, Mont.
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our team

Management Team

john johnson, president and chief executive
officer. Began his career with the former Harvest
States in 1976 as a feed consultant in the GTA
Feeds Division and later became regional sales
manager, director of sales and marketing, and
general manager of GTA Feeds. Named group
vice president of Harvest States Farm Marketing & Supply for Harvest States Cooperatives in
1992 and president and CEO of Harvest States in
1995. Selected president and general manager of
CHS upon its creation in 1998, and was named
president and CEO in 2000. Serves on the boards
of Ventura Foods, LLC; CF Industries Holdings,
Inc.; National Council of Farmer Cooperatives;
and the Greater Twin Cities United Way. Holds
a degree in business administration from Black
Hills State University, Spearfish, S.D.

jay debertin, executive vice president and
chief operating officer, Processing. Joined CHS
in 1984 in its energy division and held positions in energy marketing operations. Named
vice president of crude oil supply in 1998 and
added responsibilities for raw material supply,
refining, pipelines and terminals, trading and
risk management, and transportation in 2001.
Named to his current position in 2005, where he
is responsible for oilseed processing operations
and CHS joint venture relationships in wheat
milling through Horizon Milling, LLC, and vegetable oil–based foods through Ventura Foods,
LLC. Responsible for CHS strategic direction
in renewable energy. Serves on the boards of
National Cooperative Refinery Association and
Ventura Foods. Earned a bachelor’s degree in
economics from the University of North Dakota
and a master’s of business administration degree
from the University of Wisconsin–Madison.
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patrick kluempke , executive vice president, Corporate Administration. Responsible
for human resources, information technology,
business risk control, building and office services, along with board coordination, corporate
planning and international relations. Served in
the U.S. Army with tours in South Vietnam and
South Korea as an aide to General J. Guthrie.
Began his career in grain trading and export
marketing. Serves on the board of Ventura
Foods, LLC. Graduated with honors from St.
Cloud (Minn.) State University.
thomas larson, executive vice president,
Business Solutions. Began his career as a vocational agriculture teacher and later joined the
former Cenex in agronomy sales. Managed a
local cooperative in Hoffman, Minn., and then
returned to Cenex to hold positions in marketing, planning, agronomy services and retail
operation management. Named to his current
position in 2005. Responsibilities include Ag
States Group; Country Hedging, Inc.; and Cofina
Financial, LLC; along with business solutions
consulting, communications, public and governmental affairs, and the CHS Foundation.
Serves on the boards of Cofina Financial, Ag
States Group, Norick and Country Hedging.
Received the National FFA Organization’s Honorary American Farmer Degree in 2006. Holds
a bachelor’s degree in agricultural education
from South Dakota State University.

mark palmquist, executive vice president
and chief operating officer, Ag Business. Joined the
former Harvest States in 1979 as a grain buyer,
then moved into grain merchandising. Named
vice president and director of grain marketing in
1990 and senior vice president in 1993. Assumed

left to right: Palmquist, Larson, Kluempke,
Johnson, Debertin, Westbrock, Schmitz

his current responsibilities for grain, crop nutrients and country operations businesses in 2005.
Serves on the board of Agriliance LLC. Graduated from Gustavus Adolphus College, St. Peter,
Minn., and attended the University of Minnesota
MBA program.

john schmitz , executive vice president and
chief financial officer. Joined the former Harvest
States Cooperatives in 1974. Held accounting
and finance positions within the company,
including division controller. Named vice president and controller in 1986 and became CFO for
CHS in 1999. Member of the American Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, the Minnesota
Society of Certified Public Accountants and the
National Society of Accountants for Cooperatives. Serves on the boards of National Cooperative Refinery Association and Multigrain AG.
Holds a bachelor’s degree in accounting from
St. Cloud (Minn.) State University.

leon westbrock , executive vice president
and chief operating officer, Energy. Joined the former Cenex in 1976 in merchandising, and managed local cooperatives in North Dakota and
Minnesota. Returned to Cenex to hold various
positions, including lubricants manager, director of retailing and executive vice president of
energy for what is now CHS. Chairman of the
National Cooperative Refinery Association;
former director for Agriliance LLC and Universal Cooperatives. Named 2009 Agribusiness
Leader of the Year by National Agri-Marketing
Association. Holds a bachelor’s degree from
St. Cloud (Minn.) State University and serves
on the St. Cloud State University Foundation
Board of Directors.
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CHS extends deep appreciation to the customers, business partners, employees
and others who shared their stories that demonstrate the power of working
together, which helps our system succeed each day.
giving crops added value Rick Schwarck and the employees of Absolute
Energy, Lyle, Minn.; Tim and Chris Edgington, St. Ansgar, Iowa; Larry Laber and
Steve Markham, CHS

in memoriAm

satisfying portuguese appetites João Amorim Faria, Rui Amorim

CHS mourns the passing of

de Sousa, José Amorim, Rui de Castro Fontest, Carlos Alberto Diez Botelho, Ana
Maria Barbosa, Ana Guimaraes Correia and the staff of Cerealis–Productos
Alimentares, S.A., Maia and Lisbon, Portugal; Linda Barclay and Rick Dusek, CHS

longtime director Duane

energizing quality Paul Moser, Norfolk, Neb.; Todd Priester and Lee

December 2009. Stenzel

Wemhoff, Humphrey, Neb; Lenny Vaisvilas, Elgin, Neb.; Dave Spencer and Mike
Gullikson, CHS

planning for future success Rich Stipe, Dave Anderson, John Pogue,
Derek Gavette, Todd Honat, Jeff Bedlington and Jerry Juergens, Whatcom
Farmers Co-op, Lynden, Wash.; Ed Gunderson and Allan Larson, CHS Business
Solutions Consulting; Kurt Allender and Ron Sholtys, Ag States Group

stewards of our communities Todd Oster, Mark Biedenfeld, Kimball
Russell, Brandon Lemke, Alison Stone and the staff of Northern Plains, Gettysburg
and Dupree, S.D.; Mike Burgee, Dupree, S.D.; Clinton Simon, Dewey City, S.D.;
Ralph Holzwarth, Gettysburg, S.D.

Stenzel of Wells, Minn., in

served as a director since
1993 and had a deep personal commitment to
the role of cooperatives in creating vital rural
communities. CHS memorialized Stenzel
through a contribution toward computer
and playground equipment for St. Casimir’s
School, in Wells.
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resources for enriching lives

our company
CHS is a diversified energy, grains and foods company committed to providing
the essential resources that enrich lives around the world. A Fortune 100
company, CHS is owned by farmers, ranchers and cooperatives, along with
thousands of preferred stockholders, across the United States. CHS supplies
energy, crop nutrients, grain, livestock feed, food and food ingredients,
along with business solutions including insurance, financial and risk
management services. The company operates petroleum refineries/pipelines
and manufactures, markets and distributes Cenex® brand fuels, lubricants,
propane and renewable energy products.

Our vision

To be a globally integrated energy and grain-based foods
system innovatively linking producers with consumers
Our mission

To grow company profitability and stakeholder value
Our Values

Our tradition of partnership and shared success

Design: Colle+McVoy, Minneapolis, Minn.

Building lasting and mutually rewarding customer

Printing: Bolger Vision Beyond Print,
Minneapolis, Minn.

relationships

Photography: David Lundquist

Managing our business with the highest integrity
Being responsible stewards in our communities
Our people and their innovative spirit

right: Lake Oahe, South Dakota
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Solitude at dusk in a peaceful field can help you feel in control of your
world. But every producer knows each day brings new forces that require
understanding and action: weather, markets, technology and more. CHS strives
to be a reliable partner in helping producers, member-owners, employees
and customers navigate the forces at home and around the world to reach
new levels of success.
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